
Mayor: Tim Smith 

Ward 1: Timothy Hawkins 

Ward 2: James Pelkey 

Ward 3: Marie Bessette 

Ward 4: Michael McCarthy 

 
Ward 5: Kate Laddison 

Ward 6: Chad Spooner 

Clerk/Treasurer: Curry Galloway 

City Manager: Dominic Cloud 

 
 

 
 
St. Albans City Council  
Regular Meeting 
September 14, 2020 
City Hall Auditorium, 6:30 
 
The City Council will be returning to in person meetings on September 14, 2020.  Members of the public are encouraged to 
observe and participate in person, while following social distancing protocols.  A Zoom channel will be provided for those 
who are unable to attend in person.  There will be no chat function. 
 
The Council is working to improve the quality of the dialogue between members of the public who seek to participate and 
the Council itself.  The return to in person meetings is part of this effort.  In addition, the following guidelines will be in 
effect:  

 Public comment during the public comment period at the beginning of the meeting should be brief; limited to items 
not on the agenda; and used for making the Council aware of a situation that needs some attention.  The Council 
will typically just receive the information and not engage in a dialogue.   
 

 Public comment on a particular agenda item allows for a more thorough discussion.  Those seeking to comment on 
an agenda item may do so after recognition by the presiding officer and may request recognition by raising their 
hand at the appropriate time.  The Zoom hand raise function may be used as well.  The Council will no longer 
follow a roll call method for recognizing those that wish to speak.   

 
 Members of the public seeking to comment during the in person meeting will need to speak into a microphone and 

wear a mask so that the comment can be heard on the Zoom channel.   
 

 All public comment periods are subject to reasonable time limits established by the chair based on the number of 
people seeking to comment, the length of the agenda, and the time allotted for the subject matter.   

 
 Comments may also be received via email or conversation with individual Council members.   

 
 
Zoom Information: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88632459855  
Meeting ID: 886 3245 9855 
Call-in #: 1 (929) 205 6099 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Saint Albans • P.O. Box 867 • 100 North Main Street • Saint Albans, VT 05478 
P: 802-524-1500 • F: 802-524-1505 • info@StAlbansVt.com • www.StAlbansVt.com 



AGENDA 

1. Call to order and Pledge of Allegiance 6:30 
 

2. Review of meeting protocol 6:32 
 

3. Public comment on items not on agenda 6:35 
 

4. Parks Commission letter and discussion 6:40  
 

5. Consider extra-territorial allocation for R.L. Vallee, 555 Fairfax Rd. (D&V). 7:00 
 

6. Presentation by Brendan Deso, Selectboard Chair 7:05 
 

7. Aldis Hill water tower storage project update, Wayne Elliot 7:15 
 

8. Update on efforts to join a captive insurance pool for delivering health insurance 7:45 
a. T. Leitz and Sally McKenzie, Hickock and Boardman 

 
9. Consider adoption of Police Department policy on internal affairs (D&V) 8:00 

a. City Manager and Interim Chief Lamothe  
 

10. City Manager Report 9:00 
a. Explanation of public records request  
b. Update on racial equity training for staff and boards 
c. Update on efforts to address anti-Semitic stickers and flyers 
d. Update and Congress and Main and renovation of old CCV building 
e. Update on police chief search 

 
11. Municipal Planning Grant Resolution (D&V), Chip Sawyer 9:15 

 
12. Update on sidewalks and paving projects, M. Manahan 9:17 

 
13. Mayor’s Report 9:30 

 
14. Council Reports 9:35 

 
15. Consider approval of regular meeting minutes: 8/10/20 (D&V) 9:40 

 
16. Consider approval of warrants: 8/31/20 (D&V) 9:42 

 
17. Adjournment 9:45 

 
 



The Parks Commission for the City of St. Albans requests some clarification on our role 
as a commission. In order to better serve our community, our city staff, and ourselves, we would 
like input from the council on how best to define the work of our commission and continue to 
add value to the St. Albans community. 

The commission in recent years has guided major projects like the master plan for Taylor 
Park, upgraded playground equipment in Houghton park, facilitated a resolution to parking 
problems on Elm St, spearheaded the installation of a drinking fountain at Houghton Park and 
consulted with experts on mapping our legacy trees in Taylor Park. We have overseen a 
number of other projects like planting trees, installing public music instruments in Taylor Park, 
and we worked with the Foodscapes group led by Josh Lareau and BFA Tech Center teacher 
Jacob Holzberg-to install edible gardens in Houghton Park.  

We would like to continue this good work and support our growing city by continuing to 
enhance the tremendous assets our parks are.  Through our work, we’ve identified opportunities 
for improvement.  We propose having a clear point of contact within city leadership, a working 
budget, and a clear line of communication in decision-making. We are proposing a charter that 
clearly delineates  what our power is, who we answer to and  who answers to us.  Also, as part 
of this work, we are proposing a dedicated budget for the Parks Commission to have direct 
oversight of and decision making rights for.  

We have found it increasingly difficult to implement projects when we are unsure of who 
gives final approval to a project. We understand that a municipality has a variety of financial and 
practical considerations in any decision, and would like to help support those efforts by keeping 
good projects moving forward without needing to wait for an answer. Our fear is that meaningful 
updates and additions to our parks and park programming will lose their steam in the absence 
of clear communication and ownership.   Our projects for the city’s parks always aim to serve 
the broadest cross-sections, most underserved, poorest, and most age-diverse profile of our 
citizenry. We deeply discuss, educate, and learn from each other on the commission to attempt 
to create true social inclusivity in our community. This is hard, passionate, and vital work. 

With a clear delineation of responsibility and identified ownership, we feel we could be 
more engaged in the process and feel less out of the loop on important parks decisions.  We are 
not currently clear on the City’s plans both short term and long term. We recognize that the 
pandemic will reshape many plans but we would like the opportunity to be part of the discussion 
moving forward. We recognize that the City has many priorities and believe that with this 
proposal we can support parks-based work that plays a key role in our cityscape. 

One example where the Parks Commission could play a key role is in the Taylor Park 
master planning process.  Already, the Commission has put a lot of time, effort, and 
coordination that went into the Taylor Park master plan. In our current state,  the Commission 
has no idea if any elements of that plan will become a reality in either the short or long term. 
This is something that informs other decisions we need to make even if it’s as simple as the 
placement of a trash can or a bench. Having the authority and budget to make these decisions 
on our own or a clear contact to provide us with timely answers would allow us all to be more 
efficient.  A timely  “no” answer from our contact is still an answer and could help us refocus our 
efforts. 



Over time we have also noticed work that has occurred in the parks without anyone 
consulting us. For Example; last summer a tree service was hired to trim trees in Taylor Park. 
While we completely understand that this maintenance is necessary; we’ve spent time mapping 
and talking with experts to draft recommendations for care and best practices going forward. In 
some cases, trimming was done on trees that we would recommend be removed. Even if 
budgetary issues are informing these decisions, we would still like the opportunity to weigh in 
and provide our recommendations and believe that in doing so we could save time and money 
for everyone.  
 

As we look towards having a dedicated budget, we submit to you the purchases we have 
made as well as a list of ideas for programs and items submitted to us or developed by us that 
we feel we cannot take any meaningful action on without access to or oversight of a budget 
dedicated to our parks or parks program.  

What we’ve purchased- playground equipment, trash cans, trees and more. See below 
for some examples.  

 



 
 
 



 
 



 
 
 
A reservoir of ideas not yet recommended out of due respect for city personnel 

transitions, project load already underway, and fiscal reasons include: 
* Full-time Park Manager position 
* Covered picnic pavilion in Houghton Park  
* Adult developmental disorder playground 
* Skate and Bike park - teen focus 
*Walking Meditation Labyrinth - Barlow Rec center, underused corner of park 
* Artful Year-round public bathroom Taylor Park 
* Artful Covered Bus Stop pavillion Taylor Park 
* Passive seating Taylor Park -  included in Master plan 
* Natural child-friendly play structure like boulders,  or temporary installation like mulch 

or sand pile 



* Taylor Park grading as per Master Plan WITH careful relocation of Church Street 
garden plants for replanting, sale,or give-away after new sidewalk is poured 

* Children’s Splash area 
 

In conclusion, the Parks Commission is seeking clarity that will help us to spend our time 
on the right projects, answer relevant questions from our community, and work towards 
attainable goals.  The Parks Commission is proposing the following concrete steps be taken to 
help us serve our purpose; to keep the parks health and moving forward in the best direction 
possible:  

1. A dedicated parks budget that functions with direct Parks Commission oversight 
and direction 

2. A redefined charter that supports that budget usage and clearly defines what 
authority the Parks Commission has and what requires our approval in 
partnership with City Management.  

3. A dedicated point person within City Leadership/Management to support the 
Parks Commission in carrying out its charter.  

 
 

Thank you for your Consideration.  We look forward to discussing this further,  
 
The St. Albans City Parks Commission  
 
Joanie McGinn 
Jamie Pinkham 
Angie Sturm 
Bill Doig 
Kristen Poston 
Stina Booth 
 
 
 







City of St. Albans 
Extra-territorial* Allocation Application   
 

*Extra-territorial shall mean outside the City of St. Albans or the Route 7 North Sewer District.  
 

Date:      ________________  Telephone:  ________________ 

Location (911 Address):  _________________________________________________________________               
 

Project Title:    _________________________________________________________________ 
 

Applicant:    _________________________________________________________________ 
 

Applicant’s Address:   _________________________________________________________________ 
 
  

Water Allocation Amount:   ______    gpd                          Wastewater Allocation Amount: ______   gpd 
   

 Specific Use:    _________________________________________________________________ 
    _________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Allocation Review Criteria 
 

In reviewing projects located in the extra-territorial area, the City Council will consider the below criteria. 
Projects need not receive favorable responses to all criteria. Please address the below criteria in an attached 
document. 

 
a. Please explain why the project cannot reasonably or adequately be located within the boundaries of the City 

of St. Albans. 

b. Will the project result in an increase in the number and type of employment opportunities in the City or the 

region? 

c. Does the project directly or indirectly result in the addition or retention of employment opportunities and/or 

economic activity in the City? 

d. Does the project result in the relocation of employment opportunities or economic activity from within the 

City limits to outside the City limits? 

e. Could any relocation of employment opportunities, tax base, or economic activity from within the City 

limits to outside the City limits be mitigated through conditions? 

f. Does the connection result in retention of existing facilities in the City or the region? 

g. Does the project address unique environmental, public health or economic concerns for the region? 

h. Does the project support the expansion, retention or creation of facilities which provide essential or 

desirable public services? 

i. Does the project result in a net financial benefit or loss to the City? 

j. Could the project undermine the City’s own economic development efforts? 
 

 

broberts
Text Box
8-11-2020

broberts
Text Box
802-524-8710

broberts
Text Box
555 Fairfax Road, St. Albans Town

broberts
Text Box
Milk and Maple Allocation Increase

broberts
Text Box
R.L. Vallee, Inc.

broberts
Text Box
282 South Main Street, St. Albans, VT 05478

broberts
Text Box
1,437        increase5,474 gpd total

broberts
Text Box
1,015        increase3,798 gpd total

broberts
Text Box
10,100± SF Retail Space and Maplefields Convenience Store with 16 fueling positions, 10 employees, 36 seats, 2 laundry machines

broberts
Text Box
***Please see attached document***





 

Allocation Review Criteria 

A. Please explain why the project cannot reasonably or adequately be located within the 

boundaries of the City of St. Albans. 

a. The project location is the location of an existing gas station/convenience store and 

retail space and is not proposed to be relocated as part of this allocation increase. 

 

B. Will the project result in an increase in the number and type of employment opportunities in 

the City or the Region? 

a. The project does not propose to increase the number of employment opportunities. The 

proposed project does propose to better serve existing clientele and secure allocation on 

the proposed uses.  

 

C. Does the project directly or indirectly result in the addition or retention of employment 

opportunities and/or economic activity in the City? 

a. The project does not propose to increase/decrease employment opportunities. 

 

D. Does the project result in the relocation of employment opportunities or economic activity 

from within the City limits to outside the City Limits? 

a. The project does not propose to relocation employment opportunities. 

 

E. Could any relocation of employment opportunities, tax base, or economic activity from within 

the City limits to outside the City limits be mitigation through conditions? 

a. The project does not proposed relocation of employment opportunities. 

 

F. Does the connection result in retention of existing facility in the City or the region? 

a. The project will utilize existing water and sewer services for the additional flows. 

 

G. Does the project address unique environmental, public health or economic concerns for the 

region? 

a. The project involves a previously permitted and constructed site.  The increased 

allocation is for the additional mpd and interior changes.   

 

H. Does the project support the expansion, retention or creation of facilities which provide 

essential or desirable public services? 

a. Yes, this project proposes to better serve existing clientele with the proposed increase in 

water and sewer allocation. The project proposes an additional diesel MPD and a new 

welcome center with laundry machines to better serve and support the proposed truck 

parking. 

 

I. Does the project result in a net financial benefit or loss to the City? 

a. The City will see in increase in revenue based on the taxes taken from the site. 

 

 

J. Could the project undermine the City’s own economic development efforts? 

a. This project proposes to help better serve existing clientele and provides a needed service 

to commuters as well as interstate travelers through the City and Town of St. Albans.    



Existing Sewer flows (2007 Design Flow Rules):

15,600± SF Retail:

· 15600 SF Retail Space x 5 gpd/100sf= 780 gpd

Maplefields Convenience Store

· 1 First Gas Pump (MPD) x 500 gpd/pump= 500 gpd

· 6 Remaining Gas Pump Sets (MPD) x 300 gpd/pump= 1800 gpd

· 36 Seats x 30 gpd/seats= 1080 gpd

· 4 Employees x 15 gpd/employee= 60 gpd

Sub Total Existing Sewer Flow = 4,220 gpd

Infiltration (20% Municipal Credit) = 844 gpd

· Sub Total After Credit = 3,376 gpd

= 661 gpd

Total Existing Sewer Flow = 4,037 gpd

Proposed Sewer flows (2019 Design Flow Rules):

10,100± SF Retail Space:

· 10100 SF Retail Space x 4 gpd/100 sq. ft= 404 gpd

· 1 Grooming Station x 400 gpd/grooming station= 400 gpd

Maplefields Convenience Store

· 16 Fueling Hoses (Positions) x 125 gpd/pump= 2000 gpd

· 36 Seats x 27 gpd/seat= 972 gpd

· 9 Employees x 13 gpd/employee= 117 gpd

· 1 Employees (Welcome Center) x 20 gpd/employee= 20 gpd

· 2 Laundry Machines x 450 gpd/machine= 900 gpd

Infiltration Sub Total Proposed Sewer Flow = 4,813 gpd

·

= 661 gpd

Total Proposed Sewer Flow = 5,474 gpd

Additional Sewer Allocation Needed = 1,437 gpd

Existing Water flows (2007 Design Flow Rules):

15,600± SF Retail:

· 15600 SF Retail Space x 5 gpd/100sf= 780 gpd

Maplefields Convenience Store

· 1 First Gas Pump (MPD) x 500 gpd/pump= 500 gpd

· 6 Remaining Gas Pump Sets (MPD) x 300 gpd/pump= 1800 gpd

· 36 Seats x 30 gpd/seats= 1080 gpd

· 4 Employees x 15 gpd/employee= 60 gpd

Sub Total Existing Water Flow = 4,220 gpd

(10% Low Flow Credit) = 422 gpd

Total Existing Water Flow = 3,798 gpd

Proposed Water flows (2019 Design Flow Rules):

10,100± SF Retail Space:

· 10100 SF Retail Space 4 gpd/100 sq. ft= 404 gpd

· 1 Grooming Station x 400 gpd/grooming station= 400 gpd

Maplefields Convenience Store

· 16 Fueling Hoses (Positions) x 125 gpd/pump= 2000 gpd

· 36 Seats x 27 gpd/seat= 972 gpd

· 9 Employees (Convenience Store) x 13 gpd/employee= 117 gpd

· 1 Employees (Welcome Center) x 20 gpd/employee= 20 gpd

· 2 Laundry Machines x 450 gpd/machine= 900 gpd

Total Proposed Water Flow = 4,813 gpd

Additional Water Allocation Needed = 1,015 gpd

Municipal sewer collection system (1245 sf 

with 10 inch pipe, and 625 ft with 8 inch 

pipe) with a calculated infiltration

Municipal sewer collection system (1245 sf 

with 10 inch pipe, and 625 ft with 8 inch 

pipe) with a calculated infiltration

Proposed Water and Sewer Design Flows for Commercial Buildings

R.L. Vallee, Inc. - St Albans Milk and Maple Site

555 Fairfax Road, St Albans, Vermont 05478

Prepared by:  Civil Engineering Associates, Inc.

10 Mansfield View Lane, South Burlington, VT 05403

June 11, 2020

6/11/2020

P:\AutoCADD Projects\2004\04268\Permitting\Wastewater\Design Flows Table - St Albans







6 Market Place, Suite 2       |      Essex Junction, Vermont 05452       |      tel  (802) 879.7733       | a e e n g i n e e r s . c o m

1 

MEMORANDUM 
DATE: September 14, 2020 

TO: St. Albans City Council 

CC: Dominic Cloud 
Tom Leitz 
Marty Manahan 

FROM: Wayne Elliott 

RE: Aldis Hill Storage Tank 
Project Update 
A+E Project #19039 

BACKGROUND 

A sanitary survey of the St. Albans Water System was conducted on November 9th, 2018 by the 
State Drinking Water and Groundwater Protection Division (DWGWPD).  The following 
significant/minor deficiencies and comments/considerations were identified during the sanitary 
survey: 
 Insufficient Finished Water Storage

Since “Insufficient Finished Water Storage” is listed as a significant deficiency, the DWGWPD 
required the City to submit a plan and schedule on or before March 31, 2020 after approving a 
deadline extension request.  

This Preliminary Engineering study was started in September 2019 and the final report was 
distributed in June 2020. The State issued their acceptance of the report on September 2, 2020.  

Engineering work has continued with a topographical survey, development of an existing 
conditions and proposed site plan, and subsurface investigation so that the City can move forward 
with the land acquisition.   

PROJECT NEED 

The City of St. Albans has one (1) existing storage tank which serves the majority of the 
distribution system.  The Aldis Hill Storage Tank is a welded steel tank built in 1953 and is located 
on Congress St. with a storage volume of approximately 1.0 million gallons.  The tank has an 
overflow elevation of 696’ and operates at a typical water depth up to 38’.  



2 
 

In September of 2019, the City of St.  Albans partnered with Suez Utility Service Company to 
inspect the tank. Suez performed a Washout Condition Assessment of the tank and submitted 
their findings in a report dated September 10, 2019. It is worth noting that due to a lack of 
redundant storage tanks on the system, the Aldis Hill Storage Tank could not be taken out of 
service for this inspection. As a result, a more detailed inspection could not be performed. 
 
Overall, the report identified issues in the tank across multiple categories including coating, 
structural, safety, and sanitary conditions. This recent inspection shows conditional deficiencies 
that will need to be remedied to maintain the tank in a serviceable condition and extend the useful 
life of the tank. The existing storage tank is the only tank on the Saint Albans water system and 
cannot be taken out of service under current operating conditions of the system without loss of 
fire flow and reduction in operating pressures. The addition of a new storage tank presents an 
opportunity to take the existing tank out of service for improvements and to better align the service 
life of the two tanks. 
 
A summary is provided in Table 1 below of the required storage at the current and design year 
conditions. This table indicates that a minimum of an additional 1,000,000 gallons of storage is 
required at the design year.  
 

Table 1 
Water Distribution Storage Requirements 
Based on Typical Fire Flows of 2,500 gpm 

Description 

2019 
Current Year 

(gallons) 

2040 
Design Year 

(gallons)  
Needed Fire Flow 
(2 hours @ 2,500 gpm, as per ISO) 300,000 300,000 
Average Day Demand 1,865,793 2,100,000 

Required Storage 2,165,397 2,400,000 
Aldis Hill Storage Tank Volume 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Midway PS Credit 
(2 hours @ 1390 gpm) 166,800 166,800 
Fairfax Reservoir  
(2 hours @ 1040 gpm) 124,800 124,800 

Available Storage 1,437,400 1,437,400 
Additional Storage Requirements (727,997) (962,600) 

Use (750,000) (1,000,000) 
 
 
 
  



3 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
It was determined that 1.2 million gallons of water storage is needed to comply with the State 
Water Supply Rules. Previous work determined that raising of the existing Aldis Hill (and by 
extension the system’s hydraulic grade line) was not possible due to the high system pressures 
elsewhere in the existing system. Due to this condition, addition of a new storage tank to the 
system is unavoidable. Additionally, a “do nothing’ option is not a feasible alternative because it 
does not address the significant deficiency identified in the sanitary survey. 
 
When evaluating a new tank, several key decision points form the alternatives were considered, 
these are 1) site location, 2) tank volume, 3) tank materials.  
 
PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
Description 
Due to the nature of this work, and the required sequencing in order to take the existing water 
storage tank offline for rehabilitation, it is assumed that there a multiple phases to the construction 
contracts.  
 Phase 1 – New Water Storage Tank 
 Phase 2 – Existing Storage Tank Rehabilitation 

 
The highest priority of this work is to address the major deficiency identified in the State’s recent 
Sanitary Survey. In order to meet this requirement, both water storage tanks must be in service, 
so the tank will be addressed first. Before the existing water storage tank can be taken offline, the 
new tank must be built and placed into service. Once the new tank is in service, this tank can 
maintain pressure in the Saint Albans distribution system while the existing tank is rehabilitated. 
 
 Phase 1 consists of construction of a new 1.2 MG prestressed concrete storage tank 

adjacent to the existing storage tank. This includes the site improvements and yard piping 
for the new tank, and internal mixing will be provided in the new tank to improve water 
quality.   

 
 Phase 2 includes the rehabilitation of the existing tank and addressing the coating, 

structural, safety, and sanitary conditions. These improvements will include addition of 
mechanical mixing in the tank to improve water quality. 

 
By having both tanks in operation and operating in parallel, the City will have the ability to fill the 
tanks during off peak hours. With the mechanical mixing in each tank, and drawing down the 
water levels in the tanks during the day, the detention time in the tanks will be reduced, thereby 
improving the overall water quality, and odor and taste.  
 
Project Schedule 
For the proposed improvements, a project schedule was developed to implement all phases of 
the project and is based on a March 2021 bond vote for Phase 1.  A tentative project schedule is 
presented in Table 2. 



4 
 

Table 2 
Project Schedule  

Projected Date Task 

2020 December Finalize option agreements for land acquisition 
Start final design and permitting for the new tank.  

2021 
March Bond vote 

Advertise for bids for the New Water Storage Tank 
December  Complete construction of the New Water Storage Tank 

2022 
May Begin rehabilitation of the Existing Water Storage Tank 

August Complete rehabilitation of the Existing Water Storage Tank 
   

 
Estimated Costs 
The opinion of probable construction costs for the proposed Aldis Hill Water Storage Tank 
Improvements are summarized in Table 3.  

 
Table 3 

Estimated Construction Costs 

Phase Project 
Estimated 

Construction Cost 
1 New Water Storage Tank $1,630,000 

2 Existing Storage Tank 
Rehabilitation $1,010,000 

 Total $3,095,000 
 
 
Table 4 below summarizes the total project costs for each phase. Phase 1 has a total project cost 
of $2,300,000. The total project cost includes: a 10% construction contingency, engineering, legal, 
land acquisition, and permit fees.  

 
 

Table 4 
Total Project Cost 

Phase Project Total Cost 
1 New Water Storage Tank $2,300,000 

2 Existing Storage Tank 
Rehabilitation $1,200,000 

 Total $3,500,000 
 

Available Funding  
Effective July 1, 2020, the DWSRF program is offering additional subsidy. For up to 75% in total 
loan value, principal forgiveness is provided for the first $1M. Any amount over the initial $1M 
will be eligible for 25% loan forgiveness. This additional subsidy is on a first come first serve 



5 
 

basis and the project must meet the readiness to proceed. The State funding is summarized in 
Table 5 for Phase 1.  

 

Table 5 
Phase 1  

State Funding Sources 

Funding Sources Total Cost 
DWSRF Additional Subsidy $1,075,000      
DWSRF Revolving Loan (30 yrs) $1,225,000    

Total $2,300,000 
 

 
NEXT STEPS 
 
The following next steps to move this project forward are as follows: 

 Begin the final design and permitting in December 2020.  
 Determine the bond vote schedule and amount. 

 
 
 





 
 

This document contains proprietary information and cannot be disclosed in whole or in part without the express written consent of Hickok & Boardman HR Intelligence. 

 

 

Unique Self‐Funding Solutions for Small to Mid‐Sized Employers 

Do you want more control over your health care costs?  
Does your Organization Leader want more predictability year 
over year? 
Have you ever wondered how large companies do it? 
Do you want the same benefits and controls they enjoy? 
 
Well, these solutions are now available to employers with 50 to 
300 employees.  This is possible because there are new ways for small to mid‐sized employers to pool 
their resources with other like‐minded and similar sized employers to get the benefits and controls 
that large employers enjoy. 
 

Advantages: 
 
• Pool resources and volume to receive group purchasing discounts 
 
• Align with other employers to manage risk and share rewards  
 
• Not part of broad community rated group but part of proactive group of employers all using and 
sharing best practices to manage costs and improve employee health  

 
• Receive extensive detail on de‐identified claims experience that allow you to be proactive and steer 
employee behavior through plan design changes and incentives 

 
• These medical plans are not subject to state‐based regulations, or ERISA plans and therefore not 
mandated to join state public health insurance exchanges 

 
• Immediately save on costs required with fully‐insured plans: 
 

 ‐ 2% premium tax 
 ‐ 2.5% health insurance company tax and other ACA fees and assessments (5+% in 2020) 
 ‐ 3‐5% carrier profit margin  

 
 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 1

 

Saint Albans Police Department 
30 Lower Welden Street| St. Albans, VT 05478 | (802) 524-2166 

SUBJECT: Internal Affairs          
POLICY:  

REVIEW: annual 

 Review date: 
9/2020 

Authorized: _____________________ 
Interim Chief of Police 

NOTE:  This written directive is for the internal governance of the St. Albans Police Department. The directives contained herein are 
intended for agency use only and do not form the basis of any criminal or civil liability. Violations of these directives may form the 
basis for agency administrative sanctions only.  

 
 

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for receiving, investigating, and 
processing compliments and complaints made about individual officers or the 
Department.  This function is critical for the maintenance of professional conduct.  The 
Internal Affairs function is often the basis by which the police departments’ integrity and 
professionalism are measured. 
 
There are five specific functions of the Internal Affairs process: 
 
 Protection of the Public:  The public has the right to expect efficient, fair, and 

impartial law enforcement, therefore, any misconduct by the department personnel 
must be detected, investigated, and properly adjudicated to assure the maintenance of 
these qualities. 

 
 Protection of the Department:  The department is often evaluated and judged by the 

actions of its individual members.  It is imperative that the entire organization not be 
subjected to public censure because of the misconduct of one member.  When the 
public knows that the department honestly and fairly investigates and adjudicates all 
allegations against its members, it is less likely that the public will find the need to 
raise a cry of indignation over alleged incidents of misconduct. 

 
 Protection of the Employee:  Employees must be protected against false allegations 

of misconduct.  Although being the subject of an investigation may be unpleasant or 
uncomfortable, the best protection for an employee is a complete and thorough 
investigation conducted in a timely manner that clearly and unequivocally supports 
the employee’s honesty and integrity. 

 
 Removal of Unfit Personnel:  Personnel who engage in serious acts of misconduct, 

or who have demonstrated that they are unfit for law enforcement work must be 
removed for the protection of the public, the department, and fellow employees. 

 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 2

 Correction of Procedural Problems:  The department is constantly seeking to 
improve its efficiency and its personnel.  Occasionally, Internal Affairs investigations 
disclose faulty procedures that would otherwise have gone un-noticed. 

 
POLICY 
 
It is the policy of the St. Albans Police Department to ensure that the integrity of the 
department is vigilantly guarded by investigating all complaints alleging misconduct by 
an employee, sworn, or non-sworn; such complaints may be filed by the public or by 
employees of the department.  All complaints will be investigated thoroughly, fairly, 
impartially, and expeditiously. 
 
PROCEDURES 
  
A complaint is any action taken by a citizen or employee to focus administrative attention 
toward any action or inaction by an officer or employee which the complainant considers 
to be illegal, contrary to proper procedure or conduct, or is in any manner prejudicial to 
that citizen or employee, the department, or community as a whole. Complaints may be 
made by any person, regardless of whether they are the affected person; however, the 
assigned investigator shall make every effort to identify and secure a statement from all 
affected persons.  Complaints made by department employees will be in written form.  
ALL complaints, even those which may be of an anonymous origin, will be given full 
attention. 
 
Complaints of Discrimination or Bias 
 
Any person reporting alleged misconduct of a St. Albans Police Officer that includes 
discrimination or bias based on race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or 
handicapped status shall be given a St. Albans Police Department “Complaint of 
Discrimination Form”.  The officer taking the complaint shall review the form with the 
complainant and ask that the complainant send the form to the NAACP-Champlain Area 
Chapter.  This does not relieve the St. Albans Police Department from the responsibility 
of taking and investigating the complaint in the first instance. 
 
Posting of Procedures 
 
Procedures to be followed in registering compliments and complaints against this agency 
or its’ employees will be posted in the Main Lobby of the St. Albans Police Department. 
 
Complaint Classifications 
 
All complaints received by the Department will be classified according to the nature of 
the complaint.  The classification will be either a Minor complaint, a Serious complaint 
or an Informational in nature.  This classification will be utilized for the appropriate 
assignment of investigative responsibility. 
 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 3

Minor complaint:  Infractions of any rules or regulations, procedural infractions, or acts 
such as rude or discourteous conduct shall be included in this classification.  This list is a 
basic guide but is not all-inclusive.  Any complaint may be placed in this classification at 
the discretion of the Chief of Police.. 

 
Serious complaint:  Any complaint that alleges or concerns the use of excessive force, 
deadly force, conduct unbecoming an officer, illegal, or criminal conduct, or driving 
while intoxicated, brutality, corruption, or breach of civil rights shall be included in this 
classification.  This list is a basic guide but is not all-inclusive.  Any complaint may be 
placed in this classification at the discretion of the Chief of Police. 
 
Informational: Whenever a member of the department is contacted by anyone who 
relates a complaint as to the actions or lack of appropriate actions of a departmental 
employee, but advises that they do not desire to file a complaint, the information will be 
recorded on the departments’ Citizens’ Complaint Form and the top portion of the form 
indicating that the report is made for informational purposes only shall be checked. 
 
Investigative Responsibility 
 
Minor Complaints: will generally be assigned to the ACI Lieutenant but may be 
assigned to a qualified independent investigator or agency at the discretion of the Chief 
of Police.  Results of the investigation must be delivered to the Chief of Police for 
review, approval, and necessary administrative action. 

 
Serious Complaints: will generally be assigned to a qualified independent investigator 
or agency but may be assigned the ACI Lieutenant at the discretion of the Chief of 
Police. Results of the investigation must be delivered to the Chief of Police for review, 
approval, and necessary administrative action. 
 
If an outside agency is requested to conduct a criminal investigation parallel to the 
Internal Affairs investigation being conducted by the St. Albans Police Department, the 
St. Albans Police Department shall fully cooperate with that investigation.  However, any 
information learned as a result of having informed the subject employee of their 
Administrative Rights, shall not be released to any person conducting a criminal 
investigation; such information may be found to be “fruit of the poisonous tree”, resulting 
in the inability to prosecute a criminal case. 
 
Notification, Routing, and Time Frame 
 
All complaints shall be forwarded to the Chief of Police within twenty-four hours of 
receipt.  If an acting Chief has been designated, notification to the Chief within twenty-
four hours of return is sufficient.  Notification by phone is sufficient as a temporary 
measure only.   
 
If the acting Chief believes an internal investigation must be assigned before the Chief 
returns the acting Chief may do so after consulting with the City Manager. 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 4

 
 
The expedient investigation of all complaints will follow this basic time schedule: 
 

1. The Chief of Police or the assigned investigator shall advise the complainant in 
writing that the complaint has been received and the name of the officer or agency 
assigned to the investigation.  

2. Assignment of the investigation will be made seven business days.  
3. The assigned investigator shall keep the complainant informed of the status of the 

investigation at regular intervals, not to exceed thirty days.  
4. All investigations will be completed within thirty days of receipt unless additional 

investigation requires an extension.   
5. Extensions must be approved by the Chief of Police.  
6. The subject officer and complainant shall be notified in writing when an 

extension is granted.   
7. During extensions, status reports shall be submitted to the Chief of Police.   
8. The Chief of Police is responsible for the written notification provided to each 

complainant and subject officer telling them the results of the investigation.  
9. This notification must be made within seven calendar days of receipt of the 

completed investigation. 
 
Complaint Forms  
 
Internal Affairs Complaint forms shall be available on the Department website and in the 
lobby.    
 
In the absence of a supervisory officer, any employee is required to accept a citizen 
complaint.  The Citizen Complaint Report should be read to the complainant if there is 
any doubt as to whether they understand the form. Before the complainant signs the form, 
they should read it to check for accuracy.  Should an acting supervisor receive a Serious 
Complaint, they shall notify a Lieutenant immediately so that they may interview the 
complainant. 
 
All interviews with complainants are to be conducted in the confines of an office or 
interview room.  Under no circumstances is any member of the department to discuss a 
complaint in any public place, including the police department reception area, which may 
be observed by an uninvolved person.  If the complainant is intoxicated at the time of 
their report, they shall be interviewed a second time when they are not intoxicated. 
 
On all complaints the complainant shall be told that they will receive a letter in the mail 
as a receipt for their complaint. The complaint will then be forwarded to the Chief of 
Police in accordance with other sections of this directive. 
 
Once a complaint is received, no member of the department may contact the complainant 
unless they are assigned to the investigation.  Any attempt to make unauthorized contact 
with the complainant may result in disciplinary action. 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 5

 
 
Note: Complaint forms are not to be completed by members of the St. Albans Police 
Department when they are acting as complainant on any internal matter.  A written 
statement to the Chief of Police or his designee shall be sufficient.  Any matter reported 
verbally to the Chief of Police, or any other supervisory officer, may result in the 
initiation of an Internal Affairs investigation by the receiving supervisor. 
 
Procedural Process of Investigation 
 
The internal investigation process is not to take away from the normal supervisor/ 
employee relationship that manages performance and minor disciplinary matters that 
occur on  a daily basis and as such all informational complaints shall be resolved at the 
lowest supervisory level possible; all others shall be forwarded to the Chief of Police.    
All investigations relating to improper actions or conduct will be conducted according to 
the procedures in this policy. 
 
All Internal Affairs investigations shall be conducted confidentially.  Only the results of 
the investigation may be released with authorization; the IA investigation reports shall 
not be made available to the public.   
 
Employee Investigation 
 
When an employee is under investigation or subjected to questioning for any reason that 
may lead to demotion, dismissal, or suspension, such investigation or questioning shall be 
conducted under the following conditions and requirements: 
 

1. When an employee is the subject of a complaint or an investigation, they shall 
be notified in writing unless notification would jeopardize the investigation.  
The notification shall include the nature of the complaint, the name of the 
complainant, the location of the alleged violation or complaint, and the name 
investigator conducting the Internal Affairs investigation. 

 
2. If an employee is the subject, witness, or potential witness in an 

administrative investigation, the investigator may ask the employee to answer 
questions voluntarily or to provide voluntary statement.  If the employee is the 
subject or witness of the administrative investigation and refuses to provide a 
voluntary statement, that refusal shall not be held against them, but they shall 
be read their Administrative Rights and compelled to answer questions and/or 
provide written statement(s).  (Garrity) 

 
If a written statement is given voluntarily, the employee must complete an 
Internal Affairs Employee Voluntary Statement Form, but may note on the 
form that they are completing the statement by another means, memo, 
letterhead, etc.  In all cases that a voluntary statement is taken, the employee’s 
signature and date must be affixed to every page. 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 6

 
If an employee is making a statement after having been ordered to do so, they   
shall NOT complete their statement on a voluntary statement form of any kind.  
They must complete the written statement on a department memo or 
letterhead. In all cases that a compelled statement is taken, the employee’s 
signature and date must be affixed to every page.  The investigating officer 
shall note all compelled statements in their final report. 

 
If, after an employee has been read their Administrative Rights, and they 
subsequently provide information that incriminates them, the investigating 
officer shall complete a comprehensive report noting the incriminating 
information. Before the Internal Investigation is pursued further, the 
investigator shall notify the Lieutenant or Police Chief as applicable.  The 
information disclosed by the employee cannot be used against them in a 
criminal case, however, the investigator a criminal investigation may be 
authorized. 

 
3. If the employee is being questioned in a criminal matter, before they are 

questioned, the investigator SHALL read them their Miranda Rights 
regardless of whether the officer is under arrest or not; there is no such thing 
as a “voluntary statement” during an internal criminal investigation.  

 
Officers from Outside Agencies 
 
If allegations are made about an officer from an outside agency, the St. Albans Police 
Department shall forward a copy of the allegations to the ACI Lieutenant of the 
department having responsibility for the accused officer.  However, if the accused officer 
is alleged to have committed a criminal offense within the jurisdiction of the St. Albans 
Police Department, the St. Albans Police Department shall investigate the matter, or shall 
cause to have the matter investigated. 
 
The St. Albans Police Department shall maintain an Internal Affairs Investigation case 
number and report file of activity relative to the outside agency notification, initial 
complaint, etc.    
 
If the allegations against any officer rise to the level of a criminal offense, the St. Albans 
Police Department shall inform the Director of the Vermont Criminal Justice Training 
Council that such an investigation is underway. 
 
If an officer from an outside agency may be a witness to allegations against a St. Albans 
Police Officer, the St. Albans Police Department shall contact the Department Head of 
the witness officer’s agency and request permission to speak with the witness officer. 
 
In the case of a “serious complaint” The investigator representing the St. Albans Police 
Department may subpoena the witness officer from another agency and compel their 
testimony if the witness officer does not wish to testify.  If the allegations are classified 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 7

as a “minor complaint”, the investigator may decide whether or not to proceed with the 
subpoena process. 

 
Recording and Representation 

 
1. Interviews may be audio or video recorded during the investigation of SERIOUS 

complaints at the discretion of the Chief of Police.  There will be no “off the 
record” conversations.  Upon request, copies of any recordings or interview 
transcripts made shall be provided to the employee at the departments’ expense. 

 
2. During proceedings that may result in suspension, demotion, or termination, 

employees are permitted to have a union representative or a lawyer present during 
any interview.  Investigators cannot tell the representative that they may observe 
only, but in fact, that they are encouraged to participate with regard to matters of 
contract and law.  If the employee requests representation, the employee is 
entitled to a reasonable delay while waiting, provided that the employee is 
separated from other employees and the actions complained of do not represent a 
danger (NLRB v. Weingarten, 420 U.S. 251).    

 
3. Employees shall cooperate fully with any Internal Affairs investigation and shall 

answer all questions asked of them during any Internal Affairs investigation.  In 
the event that an employee refuses to answer questions, they shall be ordered to 
answer the questions.  If the employee still refuses to answer questions, they shall 
be immediately placed on Administrative Leave pending further actions by the 
Chief of Police.  This directive shall not apply if the employee invokes their 
Miranda Right.  

 
If an employee has been read their Miranda Rights pursuant to any Internal 
Affairs investigation and refuses to answer any question, that employee shall be 
placed on Administrative Leave, pending further actions by the Chief of Police.  
However, the employee shall not be compelled to answer questions once 
informed of their Miranda Rights.  No ranking officer shall order an employee to 
answer questions once they have been informed of their Miranda Rights. 
 
If an employee is making a statement after having been read Miranda, they may 
complete their statement on a voluntary statement form but may note on the form 
that they are completing the statement by another means, i.e. department memo, 
letterhead, etc.  In all cases that a voluntary statement is taken, the employee’s 
signature and date must be affixed to every page. 
 

4. When a complaint is filed and an investigation conducted, the employee may be 
required to submit to a medical or laboratory examination at the departments' 
expense, photographs, audio or video recordings, lineups, financial statement 
disclosure, polygraph examinations, searches of lockers, desks, or other assigned 
work areas on City property. Investigators shall have probable cause to believe 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 8

that their use of one of these techniques will be instrumental in finding a 
conclusion of fact.   
 
In no instance is a search warrant required to search an employees’ desk, locker, 
department issued vehicle, or other department owned workspace or equipment.  
In no instance is a search warrant required to seize any department owned 
property for examination provided that the item is located in a place that a search 
warrant would not otherwise be required.  If an employee has department issued 
property on their person, they shall be required to surrender such property upon 
demand of a superior officer. 

 
5. Employees shall be notified in writing of any search conducted and given a 

receipt for any item seized.  Refusal to submit to any investigative technique 
could result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.  When used, 
these techniques shall be narrowly and specifically related to the alleged offense.  
I.E. if a complainant alleges a financial impropriety, disclosure of financial 
statements may be appropriate, but medical and laboratory exams would not. 

 
In no instance may an employee's home, car, or person be searched without a 
warrant or other existing exceptions as defined in the Search and Seizure policy 
of this manual. 
 

Disposition of Internal Affairs Investigation 
 
Upon completion of the internal investigation, the assigned investigator, if applicable,  
shall submit a report of their findings to the Chief within three working days of the 
conclusion.  The investigator shall be a finder of fact only, and shall not make any 
recommendation as to disciplinary action.   
 
The Chief of Police shall notify the complainant and the subject employee within five 
days of the conclusion of the investigation and the disposition. 
 
One of the following conclusions of fact shall be the final disposition: 
 

1. Not Sustained: There is insufficient evidence to prove or disprove this complaint.  
This finding may be used for any complaint that has gone “unresolved”. 

 
2. Exonerated:  The incident occurred but the employees’ actions were justified, 

lawful, and proper. 
 
3. Unfounded:  The complainant admits to false allegations; the charges were false 

or not factual, or the employee was not involved in the incident. 
 

4. Sustained:  The allegation(s) is supported by sufficient evidence to indicate the 
employee did, in fact, commit one or more of the alleged acts. 

 



 Internal Affairs    09/14/2020 
                                                                                         Revised  

 9

Disciplinary Action 
 
The authority to discipline is exclusively that of the City of St. Albans.  Disciplinary 
actions shall be rendered consistent with the personnel policies and Union contract. 
 
Reporting 
 
An annual report shall be submitted by the ACI Lieutenant to the Chief of Police, the 
City Manager, the City Council, and the Police Advisory Board.  This report shall also be 
made available to the public by being posted on the department website and to employees 
by being posted on the Chief’s Information Board in the hall. 
 



MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: September 11, 2020 

 

To: St. Albans City Council 

 

From: Chip Sawyer, Director of Planning & Development 

 

Re: Municipal Planning Grant application 

 

Applications for VT Municipal Planning Grants are due on October 1.  As part of that process, 

we need the City Council to approve a resolution (attached). 

 

Over the past few years, the Planning Commission has discussed ground-truthing and 

“modernizing” our residential districts.  The goal is to organize new districts based on existing 

conditions and desired outcomes, and consider possible increases in housing density in order to 

further fair and affordable housing in a manner appropriate for our many neighborhoods. 

 

At the same time, there is growing pressure at the State level, including legislative proposals, to 

force new housing densities on communities without the benefit of local planning.  The best way 

to respond to that pressure to begin our own planning process now. 

 

I believe that we have the expertise necessary to make the regulatory amendments for new 

districts.  What we lack is comprehensive data for the basis of proposals and to provide 

information and justification for the public and City Council. 

 

I would like to propose that we apply for up to $22,000 in MPG funds for consultant services to 

develop the following: 

1. Creation of a project/tool in GIS software that allows for the display and analysis of 

multiple spatial layers, including: 

a. Lot usage 

b. Density of dwelling units 

c. Lot size 

d. Lot coverage 

e. Existing setbacks 

f. Building square footage 

g. Driveways/Parking areas 

h. Other layers as necessary 

2. Assistance with development and processing of data from existing sources. 

3. Ability to create new land use districts based on similar existing conditions. 

4. Ability to analyze existing conditions as well as effects of increased densities and 

other alterations. 

5. Technical assistance and a “manual” for future updates and usage of the tool. 

6. Regulatory consulting if funds and time allow. 

 

I look forward to the discussion on Monday evening. 



WHEREAS, the Municipality of ____________________________ is applying for funding as 
provided for in the FY21 Budget Act and may receive an award of funds under said provisions; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Community Development may offer a Grant 
Agreement to this Municipality for said funding; and  

WHEREAS, the municipality is maintaining its efforts to provide local funds for municipal and 
regional planning purposes or that the municipality has voted at an annual or special meeting to 
provide local funds for municipal and regional planning purposes,  

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED 

1. That the Legislative Body of this Municipality enters into and agrees to the requirements
and obligations of this grant program including a commitment to match funds.

2. That the Municipal Planning Commission recommends applying for said Grant;

_____________________________             ______________________________
(Name of Planning Commission Chair)   (Signature)

3a. That (Name)_________________________Title____________________________ 

who is either the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), as defined by 10 VSA §683(8), or is a 
Select Board Member, the Town Manager, the City Manager, or the Town Administrator, 
is hereby designated to serve as the Municipal/Authorizing Official (M/AO) for the Grant 
Electronic Application and Reporting System (GEARS), and to execute the Grant 
Agreement and other such Documents as may be necessary to secure these funds. 

3b. (Alternate Authorizing Official for redundancy) 

That (Name)_________________________Title____________________________ 

who is either the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), as defined by 10 VSA §683(8), or a Select 
Board Member, is the Town Manager, the City Manager, or the Town Administrator, is 
hereby designated to serve as the Municipal/ Authorizing Official (M/AO) for the Grant 
Electronic Application and Reporting System (GEARS), and to execute the Grant 
Agreement and other such Documents as may be necessary to secure these funds. 

3c. That (Name) ________________________Title____________________________ 

is hereby designated as the Grant Administrator, the person with the overall 
Administrative responsibility for the Municipal Planning Grant program activities related 
to the application, and any subsequent Grant Agreement provisions. 

Passed this ___________ day of ____________, ______. 

FY21 Municipal Resolution for Municipal Planning Grant 
the City of St. Albans

Stan Bradeen

Dominic Cloud City Manager

William Sawyer Director of Planning & Development

18-Aug-2020



2021 Municipal Planning Grant – Municipal Resolution June 2020 
Vermont Department of Housing and Community Development Page 2 

 (For rural towns or consortia only) The regional planning commission will serve as agent for
the municipality or consortium. (Check the box if the municipality authorizes its regional
planning commission to prepare the application, support grant administration and be
exempt from competitive selection if serving as project consultant.)

LEGISLATIVE BODY 
(name) (signature) 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESOLUTION FORM 
A. The Legislative Body of the Municipality must adopt this resolution or one that will

have the same effect. This Form may be filled in or the adopted Resolution may be
issued on municipal letterhead, filling in the name of the municipality, the
Legislative Body (e.g. Selectboard), and the name and title of the Municipal/
Authorizing Official(s) (M/AOs); and the Grant Administrator.

B. Following formal adoption, a majority of the legislative body must sign the
Resolution. The Chair of the Planning Commission must also sign upon endorsement
by vote of the Planning Commission.

C. This form must be either uploaded to the online application or grant, or mailed to:

Municipal Planning Grant Program 
Department of Housing and Community Development 

One National Life Drive, Sixth Floor 
Montpelier, VT 05620-0501 

D. If mailed, an electronic copy of the submitted Resolution document will be uploaded
by DHCD staff and available online.

E. Please note that the designated Municipal/Authorizing Official(s) and Grant
Administrator must also register for an account in the online grants management
system, if they have not done so already, before the application can be considered
complete.

CONSORTIUM APPLICATIONS:  For a consortium, each municipality must complete a 
separate Resolution form. All municipalities in a consortium must designate the same 
Municipal/Authorizing Official(s) and grant Administrator.  

http://accd.vermont.gov/sites/accdnew/files/documents/CD/CPR/MPG/CPR-MPG-Procurement-Rural%20Town%20List.pdf
https://egrants.vermont.gov/Registration2.aspx


 

1 
 

  St. Albans City Council 
Minutes of Meeting 

Monday, August 10, 2020 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

 
A regular meeting of the St. Albans City Council was held on Monday, August 10, 2020, at 6:30 pm in City 
Hall and via remote teleconference.  

 

Council Present:  Mayor Tim Smith; Aldermen: Michael McCarthy, Chad Spooner and Tim Hawkins & 
Alderwomen: Marie Bessette and Kate Laddison.  

Council Absent: Alderman Jim Pelkey.   

Staff Present: Dominic Cloud, City Manager; Chip Sawyer, Director of Planning & Development; Curry 
Galloway, City Clerk; Tom Leitz, Director of Administration; Maurice Lamothe, Interim Police Chief and 
Marty Manahan, Director of Public Works, Operations & Business Development.  

Visitors: Bruce Wilson, Angie Sturm, Marianne Hunkin, Mike Hoeflich, Reese Kelly, Reier Erickson, Zach 
Scheffler, Michelle Monroe, Erika Hamlin, Kate Larose, Tanner McCuin, Maressa Miles and John 
Holzscheiter. 
 
 

1. Executive Session re: civil litigation, contracts and personnel. 

a. The Council finds that premature disclosure would compromise the City or person involved (D&V).  
A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Hawkins to find that 
premature disclosure of the above matters would compromise the City or person involved. Vote 
was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

b. The Council moves to enter Executive Session for purposes of discussing civil litigation, contracts and 
personnel matters where premature disclosure could compromise the City or person involved 
(D&V).  
A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman Hawkins to enter Executive 
Session for purposes of discussing civil litigation, contracts and personnel matters where 
premature disclosure could compromise the City or person involved. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  

 

A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Spooner to exit Executive 
Session. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

2. Convene Open Session with Pledge of Allegiance.  
Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm and led the pledge of allegiance.  
 

3. Public comment on matters not on the agenda.  
Bruce Wilson, Executive Director of Arts So Wonderful, introduced himself. He thanked Mr. Sawyer and 
the City Council for allowing him to place electrical panels in Taylor Park and on Lake Street and is 
hoping to hold more events with local artists and residents in the community. He is working with Mr. 
Sawyer to plan a free event for community members in the City. Mayor Smith thanked Mr. Wilson. He 
noted that the art work that was done was beautiful and will continue to look for locations to be able to 
utilize his organization again moving forward.  
 

Mr. Spooner noted two metal doors in Houghton Park that are beginning to rust and suggested having 
Mr. Wilson paint them since he’s an expert at painting on metal. Mr. Wilson responded that he would 
love the opportunity to paint the doors. Mayor Smith asked him to connect with Mr. Sawyer.  
 



 

2 
 

Zach Scheffler of Lake Street introduced himself. He noted the Police Department’s complaint system 
and believes there should some increased transparency of that system. He believes independent local 
involvement is a critical part of improving that system. He noted the National Association for Civilian 
Oversight of Law Enforcement and their FAQ page, specifically. It includes a tremendous amount of 
resources, plans and models for effective deployment of local involvement in oversight or complaint 
systems. Some of the benefits were reducing public concern over high profile instances, identifying 
areas of concern, offering options to improve policies and policing and the community reassurance that 
discipline is being imposed when appropriate. Mr. Scheffler stated that Brattleboro used these 
resources to form the Citizen Police Communication Committee.  
 

Reese Kelly introduced herself. He noted the larger community conversation surrounding SRO’s in 
schools and is curious what the positive impacts of having them in the schools are and how it’s being 
measured. He is concerned about the impacts with the children of color in the community and how 
they’re being treated as well as students with disabilities. He confounded as to why they are in the 
school system and what role they’re playing other than to govern positive feelings toward the police 
force which doesn’t seem like a positive impact on the students.  
 

Angie Sturm of Ward 4 introduced herself. She stated that her thoughts are on Institutional nature of 
racism in everyday life. It matters because it reflects racial inequity and is something different from an 
individual holding racist beliefs. It is rarely established intentionally. She asked if we as a community can 
truly welcome black voices into public discourse. She urged fellow community members to resist the 
false narrative that St. Albans is a bubble where institutional racism does not exist.  

 

4. Recess for Liquor Control.  
A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderwoman Bessette to recess for liquor 
control. Vote was unanimous, 6-0. 
 

5. Consider Adoption of Police Road Map, City Manager (D&V). 
a. Staff Presentation, Board Discussion, Public Comment.  

Mr. Cloud explained that this is a continuation of the work and sentiments that were reflected at the 
last meeting with an emphasis on diversity, racial equity and inclusion. To that end, three additions 
were prepared to amend the original document. Mr. Cloud proceeded to read the additions aloud. 
(See Attached Police Road Map). Mr. Cloud reinforced that this is a fluid document that is able to be 
changed as needed. Mr. McCarthy thanked the City Manager for taking the public comment from 
the last meeting into consideration and including the Police Advisory Committee piece into the road 
map.  
 

Reier Erickson asked how racial and economic diversity will be created within the St. Albans Police 
Department and asked how the issues of equity and race will be dealt with overall. Mr. Cloud 
responded that there will be a later discussion this evening regarding the hiring policy and how it 
guides the decision making process for recruitment and officer hiring. He would also look to the 
input and participation of the Police Advisory Board to help guide some of the decisions in hiring and 
recruitment. Mr. Cloud stated that he doesn’t believe many of us have looked through the lens for 
equity and inclusion as a reflection of economic diversity and focused more on the traditional 
application of race, gender, religion, etc. He reiterated that staff is in the middle of developing a 
strategy for how all the departments will participate in the implicit bias training.  
 

Kate Larose, City resident, introduced herself. She recalled the preamble statement and asked what 
budget would be available for national experts and throughout this process beyond the scope of just 
MRI. Mr. Cloud responded that there isn’t any money budgeted for any of this but there are times 
when there is the need to invest and find the money which is what was done with the MRI efforts. 
Some of these efforts go beyond the Police Department and is more of a City effort both within the 



 

3 
 

organization and the community as a whole. He stated that he has not had any funding 
conversations with City Council but it’s possible that there could be additional appropriations for 
broader topics. He noted that from a staff perspective, the time for that is likely FY 22.  
 

Marianne Hunkin stated that she would like to bring everyone back to Ms. Sturm’s call for action to 
deal with racism and equity in St. Albans. She believes the Police Advisory Board is a place to begin 
to rectify the inaction of St. Albans over time. She asked that the vote be delayed on forming a 
Police Advisory Board tonight and stated that if accountability is truly the goal, the language in the 
document does not achieve that goal. She expressed her appreciation for the collaboration by the 
City Council but does not believe the proposal as it stands is sufficient. She is requesting that the 
number of board members on the Police Advisory Board be increased to seven, that the Chief does 
not sit on the board, that there are no conflicts of interest amongst board members and that the 
majority of the board members are represented by marginalized communities, that there be more 
specific language around antiracism and that the members are not prohibited in discussing policy 
issues provided that they are not revealing personal information.  
 

Mr. McCarthy stated that he assumes that if this roadmap is adopted, it will lay out some values and 
principles and can be adjusted, added to and changed at any time and points the council in the 
direction of the efforts being identified. He assumed that there would be further conversations 
surrounding the makeup of the Police Advisory Board and that getting this started tonight does not 
preclude us from doing that. Mr. Cloud responded that that is absolutely correct and this road map 
reflects the areas of consensus, the art of the possible and allows for a starting point. Ms. Laddison 
echoed that sentiment and agreed that these are improvements that will be made over a long 
period of time.  
 

A motion was made by Alderman McCarthy; seconded by Alderman Spooner to adopt the Police 
Road Map. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.      

 

6. Consider Adoption of Police Advisory Board (D&V). 
a. Staff Presentation, Board Discussion, Public Comment.  

Mr. Cloud explained that this document creates a Police Advisory Board with the following mission. 
To offer advice to the St. Albans Police Department for the successful implementation of 21st 
century policing strategies and assist the Police Department in following the established road map 
as amended by the City Council. Mr. Cloud stated that that advice is primarily given to the Police 
Department through the Chief of Police and this is a fairly narrow charge. Mr. Cloud stated that this 
isn’t the Community Transformation Counsel and it’s not the Counsel on Racial Equity, Inclusion and 
Diversity. This is focusing narrowly on the Police Department and helping them appreciate the 
perspective of others, of marginalized communities and involves trust building through experience 
sharing. By its very nature, it reflects diverse voices learning from each other by listening to one 
another and establishing consensus on a way to move forward. That’s the vision behind this group. 
Mr. Cloud stated that the board may accomplish this mission through the following activities; 
providing advice, insight and recommendations to the Chief for strengthening the department’s 
relationship with the community, with special emphasis on marginalized and minority communities. 
Mr. Cloud proceeded to read aloud the remainder of the proposed Police Advisory Board mission. 
(See Attached Police Advisory Board Proposal).  
 

Mr. Cloud explained that a policy on investigations and complaints will be seen at a future meeting. 
In that policy, it talks about who does the investigation, it talks about transparency disclosure for 
inspiring confidence in the community. Mr. Cloud provided the example of excessive use of force 
complaints over 12 months. This board can take that data and decide to look into it further and will 



 

4 
 

be in the position to sound the alarm. What they don’t do is negate a decision made after an 
investigation which is the job of the City Council and City Manager.  
 

Mr. Cloud explained that the next document is to assist the Police Department in recruitment 
practices and retention, particularly as we transition to a guardian-based culture while seeking to 
diversify the department and to serve as a sounding board for new ideas and initiatives that will 
enhance community engagement.  
 

Mr. Cloud stated that the proposed Police Advisory Board talks about 5 members but doesn’t have 
any chafe in increasing it to 7 members. He further stated that he doesn’t see how there can be a 
board formed to offer advice to the Police Department without the Chief of Police participating in 
those conversations. Mr. Cloud stated that it’s hard for him to see the mission of this board 
accomplished with just marginalized groups on it.    
 

Ms. Laddison asked if the Chief would vote if he was not a member of the board. Mr. Cloud 
responded negatively. Mr. Cloud stated that many of our boards have staff members that provide 
support and receive direction for them and provided the example of the Planning Director in the 
context of the Planning Commission and the Permitting Administrator in the context of the 
Development Review Board.  
 

Mr. Spooner stated that he would like to see the board increased to 7 members and suggested 
staggering terms. He asked who conducted the use of force investigations in the past. Mr. Cloud 
responded that most departments of our size until very recently have conducted their own internal 
investigations where they don’t involve possible criminal matters. He stated that that practice is 
changing drastically. Mr. Spooner asked if this board would be similar to other boards where a Chair 
is elected and the Chair will be responsible to run the meetings and create the agenda. Mr. Cloud 
responded that the Chair will certainly run the meeting and the Council may decide to appoint the 
Chair. Mr. Spooner asked if it would be ok for the Police Chief to attend these meetings in civilian 
clothing, unarmed if it’s an evening meeting. Chief Lamothe responded that if he is attending the 
meeting as the Chief, he would be in uniform. Mr. Spooner expressed that he wants to make sure 
that it’s a comfortable setting for everyone involved. Chief Lamothe stated that he is open to 
wearing civilian clothing but would like to carry a concealed weapon.  
 

Mr. Hawkins asked how often the board would meet and what types of things outside the bullet 
items will be discussed. He acknowledged that this will be a very important board for the City and if 
someone were to serve a two to three year term, he’d like to make sure that they have some level 
of training on how to be on a board. Mr. Hawkins expressed that he wants to make sure this 
advisory board doesn’t meet so often that they start looking into the minutia of the department. He 
also agreed that the board should have 7 members.  
 

Ms. Laddison asked what the relationship will be between this board and the City Council and asked 
if this board would report to the City Council on a regular basis which is unlike other boards. She 
added that she believes there should be some type of reporting structure for the board. Mr. Cloud 
responded that any board has an obligation to champion their interests and lobby for them to staff 
and to the City Council. The City Council tends to deal with the action items before them and less 
reporting which happens at the staff level. That could be built in and the onus is on the board. Mr. 
Cloud stated that the Council can bring them in as little or as much as desired. Mr. Spooner 
suggested discussing that further at the next meeting. Ms. Laddison commented that she would 
want every board to feel like they could come to the City Council at any time with a regular 
mechanism in place so they don’t feel like their work is in vain. Mr. Spooner suggested seeing each 
board quarterly or a few times per year.  
 



 

5 
 

Reese Kelly commented that he feels it’s completely inappropriate that Chief Lamothe would want 
to carry a weapon in a meeting that’s about community advocacy. He stated believes that there is a 
grave opportunity lost on the recent discussion. There are a group of individuals that are deeply 
committed to the community and the things that are being asked for are outright being ignored. If 
one of the goals is to recruit officers of color to this region, one way to start is by small decisions like 
listening to people in the community and taking their thoughts into consideration.   
 

Reier Erickson stated that he is a black human being and moved to St. Albans from Bristol. He was 
warned before moving to St. Albans that it’s a racist community and the police officers are violent. 
In 6 months of living in the community, he has been called the “N” word three times in public while 
walking through Taylor Park. He stated that there is a history of racism in St. Albans and he would 
not feel comfortable sitting on the board if the Chief of Police were on it. The other day, a police 
officer was in his back yard for several minutes because his neighbors get the police called on them 
frequently. He explained that the officer never came to his door and when he went outside, the 
officer questioned him more than the residents of the house who were committing the crime the 
police were called for. He explained that this isn’t a Citizen Oversight Committee, it’s just an 
advisory board allowing for a formal discussion place for community members who are appointed 
by City Council to have a discussion with the Chief of Police. He commented that he didn’t 
appreciate the comment by Councilor Hawkins that people wouldn’t be ready to engage in that. Mr. 
Cloud asked Mr. Erickson how he felt about having a committee that wasn’t involved with the Police 
Department but rather a committee made of up seven members of community members for safer 
neighborhoods with a charge to create something and the opportunity to meet and give the City 
Council information they think they need to hear. Mr. Erickson responded that he would personally 
prefer sitting on a board like that than the one being presented tonight. He is not opposed to a 
Police Advisory Board but wouldn’t personally feel comfortable being a part of it. Mr. Cloud asked 
Mr. Erickson how a committee for safer neighborhoods differs from the neighborhood group he’s 
currently apart of which can meet as much as they’d like and provide feedback. Mr. Erickson 
responded that he’s felt chastised as a member of that group for speaking out publicly on various 
topics which is not ok.  
 

Marianne Hunkin agreed with Mr. Erickson that they are going to continue to meet and show up but 
they would like to have actual accountability of the police in the City. The Police Advisory Board as 
its being presented currently does not do that. She asked the City Council if they have reviewed the 
examples from Barre, Vergennes, Rutland and Plattsburg.  She stated that it is absolutely necessary 
to have representation by marginalized communities because she as an educated white woman will 
never understand what it is like to live as a black person in this community or in low income housing 
in this community and to have higher instances of interaction with police.     

Kate Larose recalled that one of the intents of the Police Advisory Board is to provide advice, insight 
and recommendations to the Chief for strengthening the department’s relationship with the 
community, with special emphasis on marginalized and minority communities. Given this, it makes 
sense that the majority of the members represent marginalized communities and those that are 
known to received disproportionate contact or harm from law enforcement. At first glance, this 
might seem a barrier for recruitment but Statewide Councils are routinely doing this. Advice, 
recommendation and insight from outside the community is already being provided by way of 
contracts. She is asking that this board explicitly focus on community voices and be represented by 
people who have lived through these experiences. In reference to the request for training to be 
provided for board members, Ms. Larose stated that she would hope this training would be 
provided to all boards and all members.  
 



 

6 
 

Mr. Scheffler stated that he hopes the inclusion of strategies for a commitment to exploring how to 
help police draw down in their service to the community, specifically in their involvement of low 
level offenses. This has been part of the outline that the ACLU of Vermont has delivered. He stated 
that he is specifically thinking of ways to explore community partners. He recalled the conversation 
from a previous meeting where Chief Lamothe spoke about having a social worker on staff and 
provided that opportunity as a positive example. He reiterated that representation on the board is 
very important and feels strongly that conflict of interests should be avoided.   
 

Mr. McCarthy stated that he hears the need for more representation and believes that can be 
accomplished by creating this advisory board and making sure the City Council holds themselves 
accountable in ensuring the makeup of this board is a good one. He agreed with avoiding conflicts of 
interest, however, wouldn’t want to exclude anyone from ever having any policing experience from 
being on this advisory board because they might have a great perspective to offer. Mr. McCarthy 
stressed that he really hears what’s being asked for by members of Safer for St. Albans and after 
much discussion, he agrees that this Police Advisory Board is not sufficient in solving all of the 
problems that have been raised tonight. He stated that this, however, is one small piece that is 
important toward creating a space for members of the community that are interested in taking a 
deeper dive than the City Council can in talking about the issues of policing and to have the 
communication with the Police Chief and the City Council about what they are seeing on the streets 
and what can be done to do better. Mr. McCarthy stated that he would like to see the proposal for a 
Police Advisory Board move forward tonight and can continue to work on fine tuning it. He also 
agreed that the board should have 7 members of marginalized and minority communities. 
 

Mayor Smith agreed that all of the details aren’t finalized and his expectation is to work on them as 
they arise.  
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderman McCarthy to adopt the Police 
Advisory Board with 7 members and with the understanding that it is a fluid document. Mr. 
Hawkins mentioned the public comment about the documents that show what other towns are 
doing and asked if that was something he received. Mr. McCarthy stated that he’s read a number of 
charges of different committees across the State and what’s presented tonight has way more 
power, a much bigger scope and more access to the police than most of the other communities 
have. Mr. Cloud commented that at the staff level, they looked at Barre, Winooski and Brattleboro. 
Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

Alderman McCarthy left the meeting briefly at 7:56 pm and returned shortly thereafter.  
 

7. Police Report, Interim Chief Lamothe. 
a. Update and Overview of Recent Activity. 

Chief Lamothe stated that he wanted to address the earlier comment about wearing a uniform to an 
advisory board meeting. He explained that the uniform is a symbol of professionalism but is highly 
adaptable and prides himself in getting along with everyone. He is open to adapting to whatever the 
request of the advisory board is.  
 

Chief Lamothe explained that much of his time during the past month has been spent on policy 
making and reestablishing communications within the community groups and support entities in 
Franklin County such as NUSI (Northwest Unit for Special Investigations), NCSS and Restorative 
Justice. He had a long conversation with the RJC Executive Director, Nina Curtiss, about their 
teamwork and collaboration. The opioid grant is up for renewal. The department will also start 
meeting for COM-STAT meetings to learn what is happening in Franklin County and to go over data. 
Chief Lamothe explained that Ms. Curtiss has extended training that her staff uses to the Police 
Department and officers will be attending a Cognitive Behavioral Therapy training.  



 

7 
 

Chief Lamothe stated that NUSI specializes in sexual assault in Franklin and Grand Isle Counties and 
are currently looking for detectives to join their unit. Currently, St. Albans does not have any 
detectives in that unit. Next year, he is hopeful to add a detective to that unit which will be 
dependent on staffing and grants. He added that the majority of all sexual assault calls come from 
St. Albans City.  
 

Chief Lamothe stated that NCSS has 600 employees, serving Franklin Grand Isle Counties. The 
department has learned a tremendous amount through their Crisis Intervention Specialist and is 
aware that they could use more support. He stated that 45% of the people that the Vermont State 
Police and St. Albans Police Department come in contact with are referred to NCSS for follow up.  
 

A Shift Report is now required by the Sargent on duty at the end of each 12 hour shift. Chief 
Lamothe explained that it’s a great tool to allow the next shift to know what happened on the shift 
prior and so they know what they need to follow up on. In looking at those reports, there are at 
least two to four mental health calls on every single shift.   
 

In July, a Corporal on the department was praised by AmCare for the way he handled a suicide 
attempt. Later in the month, the same Corporal also helped a second person attempting suicide to 
seek help. Corporal Koch responded to a call with a baby that wasn’t breathing and performed life 
saving measures before AmCare arrived. She will be honored with a Life Saving Award. Chief 
Lamothe stated that the department also participated in a retirement party at NCSS, birthday 
parties and a drive-thru funeral.  
 

b. Review of Monthly Data. 
Chief Lamothe explained that he broke down the top 10 calls for the month of July. The most 
frequent call was for Traffic Stops with 201 cases. He added that 79% of those stops were issued 
warnings.  Directive Patrols included 89 cases followed by Foot Patrols with 60 cases. Public Assist 
was the next highest call and covers everything from parades to civil complaints, trespassing and 
lost and found items. Motor Vehicle Complaints followed and includes high speed and erratic 
operation or any general motor vehicle complaint. Disturbances had 45 cases followed by Suspicious 
Calls, Alarms and Agency Assist. A total of 99 charges and 43 arrests occurred in July. Of those 
arrests, 41 were Caucasian. Chief Lamothe stressed that their job is to educate people and to 
promote safety vs. just handing out tickets.  
 

Mr. Spooner asked Chief Lamothe who the prior St. Albans officer was that worked with NUSI. Chief 
Lamothe responded that Corporal Bourgeois is attached the State’s Attorney office but there hasn’t 
been a St. Albans officer working with NUSI for years. Mr. Spooner asked if Chief Lamothe believes 
the shift reports will help to catch patterns and offer more referrals quicker. Chief Lamothe 
responded that one of the hurdles with mental health is that once you reach adult age, you can’t 
force them to seek help. Mr. Spooner asked if officers are provided with first aid training. Chief 
Lamothe responded that every officer is required to undergo annual First Aid and CPR training. Mr. 
Spooner asked what happens with the revenue from tickets and asked if that money could be used 
for example, to provide someone with a car seat who is stopped for having a child in the vehicle 
without one. Mr. Cloud responded that ticket revenue flows into the General Fund and is 
appropriated by the City Council. Mr. Spooner asked Mr. McCarthy to please lobby at the State level 
to get rid of front license plates. Mr. McCarthy responded that legislatures have heard from law 
enforcement that they appreciate having front and rear plates. Chief Lamothe added that for safety 
reasons, front plates are absolutely necessary and have solved numerous crimes with the aid of the 
front plate.  

 

c. Consider Adoption of Policy on Police Officer Selection (D&V).  



 

8 
 

Chief Lamothe explained that this is a draft policy on police officer selection and believes it is well 
written and thorough. He stated that the policy includes nine steps and all of the criteria other 
agencies are using. The piece that is not done by many other agencies is the inclusion of a hiring 
panel made of community members. Chief Lamothe explained that they used this draft policy and 
hiring panel last week for an interview and received positive feedback by both the panel and 
candidate. He believes having community engagement will be extremely beneficial to this process, 
allowing for different perspectives. The final piece to the policy includes an extensive background 
check with no stone unturned. Chief Lamothe stated that every policy the department produces, 
including this one, is a COLEA-based standard policy. Chief Lamothe proceeded to list the other 
COLEA-based standard policies that the department is working on.   
 

Mr. Spooner asked how the two citizens who sat on the panel were selected and asked how they 
would be selected in the future. Chief Lamothe responded that in speaking to other Chiefs who have 
used this method, it is recommended that the citizens who sit on the panel be different every time. 
He explained that when the interview took place last week, he didn’t have a lot of time to prepare 
and chose someone from the Restorative Justice Program and a second person who he’d never met 
before and recently graduated from college. Mr. Spooner suggested using the Police Advisory Board 
to select the citizens who sit on the interview panel. Mr. Spooner asked if a probationary 
employment period is part of the process. Chief Lamothe responded that a full-time officer will have 
a one year probationary period after they complete the Academy. 
 

Ms. Laddison asked if the policy covers who is responsible to administer the polygraph. Chief 
Lamothe responded that there are not many companies in Vermont that administer them the 
department uses a company from Chittenden County. Ms. Laddison stated that she appreciates the 
commitment to diversity that is mentioned in the policy. Chief Lamothe explained that in his former 
position, they had success with recruiting a diverse pool of candidates from CCV. He expressed that 
overall, it is very challenging.  
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderwoman Laddison to approve the 
policy on police officer selection. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  

 

8. Hard’ack Concert Request, John Holzscheiter (D&V).  
Mr. Holzscheiter presented a documentary on the After Glow concert that took place at Hard’ack last 
year to honor his late son, AJ Holzscheiter, and to provide education and support for suicide awareness 
and prevention. Mr. Holzscheiter explained that he would like to hold another concert in 2020 while 
following the State guidelines for Covid. He was provided with safety guidelines from his friend Michael 
Schirling who is the Commissioner of Vermont Public Safety. The concert would be limited to a 
maximum of 150 people in what he envisions as drive-in quadrants. Last year, they received approval 
from the Vermont DLC to allow open containers of alcohol and double fenced in the entire hill. Mr. 
Holzscheiter explained that with covid, they are envisioning the location to be moved to the fields that 
border the interstate and away from Eastview. This location will also eliminate the sound issue for the 
neighbors. There are two local bands that have offered to play at no charge and envisions a 3 pm start 
time with the event ending by 8 pm. Mr. Holzscheiter stated that there were no issues last year with 
traffic and would not include food and drink vendors this year. He explained that the idea is to just hold 
the event given the circumstances so they don’t have to miss a year and start over again with their 
efforts. The cost to attend will be $20 per person and all proceeds will go toward the fight against 
suicide. He added that the majority of those funds will go to NCSS. Last year, they raised $15,000 for 
NCSS, $10,000 for the St. Albans City Recreation Department and $2,000 to a Learn To Ski & Ride 
Program to help purchase helmets for children.  
 



 

9 
 

Mayor Smith asked how enforcement will take place to make sure attendees are following social 
distancing guidelines. Mr. Holzscheiter responded that they had 50 volunteers last year that helped with 
the event as well as 10 people working security. All have offered to come back and help out at a future 
event.  
 

Mr. Spooner thanked Mr. Holzscheiter and requested that he be safe. He noted that the fields can also 
be muddy at times in the spring. Mr. Holzscheiter responded that the concert would take place on 
September 19th.  
 

Ms. Laddison commended Mr. Holzscheiter for his work. She asked if he is planning for the vehicles to 
have enough room in each quadrant for the occupants to be able to get out their vehicle and sit in a 
lawn chair. Mr. Holzscheiter responded that vehicles would be spaced at least 6 feet apart to allow 
people to sit in chairs in front of their vehicle and watch the show. Ms. Laddison stated that a crowd of 
1,000 people will be a lot to maintain and wants to ensure there is safe distancing. Mr. Holzscheiter 
stressed that they had between 1,200 and 1,400 people in attendance last year and not one problem.  
 

A motion was made by Alderman Spooner to approve the concert request by Mr. Holzscheiter to be 
held on September 19th. Motion was seconded by Alderman McCarthy to approve the concert request 
with the caveat that Mr. Holzscheiter to continue to work with Mr. Schirling and delve into all of the 
operational aspects to make sure they conform to the latest public health and safety guidelines. Mr. 
Holzscheiter stated that he has been in communication with Mr. Schirling on a weekly basis for the last 5 
weeks and has been a great supporter of the event and cause. Kate Larose from the public commented 
that this is a great cause but urged the City Council not to approve this and finds it to be completely 
irresponsible to hold an event with up to 1,000 people while children can’t even go to school 5 days a 
week. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

9. Final Public Hearing for Almond Blossoms VCDP Planning Grant, Chip Sawyer (D&V).  
Mr. Cloud explained that this is a final public hearing for the Almond Blossoms VCDP Planning Grant. The 
City was previously awarded more than $50,000 by VCDP. The VCDP funds have been used to 
accomplish the following activities: Architectural and engineering services, environmental and historic 
reviews, and other studies associated with planning, permitting, designs and construction documents 
toward the future objectives of property acquisition, renovations and construction and the 
establishment of a pre-school and childcare facility at 233-235 Lake Street in St. Albans.  
 

Mayor Smith asked what the funding will be used for. Mr. Sawyer responded that the funding was used 
for the plans and specifications to expand and renovate the building and get the environmental releases.  
 

10. Consider Adoption of Almond Blossoms Resolution, Chip Sawyer (D&V).  
A motion was made by Alderman Spooner; seconded by Alderwoman Laddison to adopt the Almond 
Blossoms Resolution as presented. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

Mr. Sawyer stated that the great news is that the City was awarded the $500,000 to do the expansion 
and this is a required resolution which City Council just passed to assign the Planning Commission a 
special role in the grant administration and program management.  
 

11. Consider Appointments to Planning Commission and DRB, Mayor Smith (D&V). 
Mr. Hawkins asked which councilor’s met with the Planning Commission. Mayor Smith responded that 
he, Mr. Spooner and Ms. Laddison met on a Zoom call and interviewed Zachary Nuse for the Planning 
Commission and also spoke with Matthew Preedom who expressed interest in the DRB Alternate 
position. Mayor Smith stated that from his perspective, both were excellent conversations and both 
individuals were excited to participate in City government and brought a lot to the table relative to how 
they thought they might be able to assist on those specific committees. Mr. Spooner and Ms. Laddison 
agreed with Mayor Smith.  



 

10 
 

 

A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Spooner to appoint Zachary Nuse 
to the Planning Commission and Matthew Preedom to the DRB as Alternate with terms expiring 
12/31/22. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

12. Consider Authorizing the City Manager to Sign the Operating Agreement and Cell Tower Sublease 
Agreement for the Emergency Communications Tower on Georgia Mountain (D&V).  
Mr. Cloud explained that the Council packet includes an Operating Agreement and a Cell Tower Sublease 
Agreement that allows the City develop an emergency communications cell tower on Georgia Mountain. 
This is the implementation of the Letter of Intent that was discussed previously. Mr. Hawkins asked if 
there were any substantial changes from the Letter of Intent. Mr. Cloud responded negatively.  
 

A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderwoman Laddison to authorize the City 
Manager to sign the Operating Agreement and Cell Tower Sublease Agreement for the emergency 
communications tower on Georgia Mountain. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  
 

13. Mayor’s Report. 
Mayor Smith stated that he connected a local college graduate of Stonehill College who did her thesis on 
how improper police training leads to racism with Chief Lamothe and with Robert Langevin of the 
Sherriff’s Department. She conducted a 2 hour presentation to Sherriff Langevin who said it was a great 
training opportunity. He and the City Manager also had some conversations with concerned citizens 
about the anti-sematic posters that have been seen around the City and had a discussion on how to 
move forward in terms of getting a tolerance message out to the public. Mr. Cloud is working on a 
campaign with the Messenger and will be shared at a later time. Mayor Smith stated that he also had a 
discussion with the Farmer’s Market about expanding to include an International Market with the two 
operating in conjunction with one another.  
 

14. Councilor Reports. 
Ms. Laddison suggested discussing a goal setting meeting offline.  
 
Mr. Hawkins asked Mr. Manahan if he had an update on the shopping center. Mr. Manahan responded 
that he sent an email to Mr. Pomerleau after the last meeting and has not heard back. He will try to 
connect with him again this week. Mr. Hawkins also asked for an update on One Federal. Mr. Manahan 
responded that the current owners are doing an interior renovation and some work on the exterior. 
When the owners were doing some exterior work last week, they found more rot than anticipated. Mr. 
Manahan stated that he will be meeting with the owners to discuss a possible façade grant.  
 

15. Other Business.  
No other business was discussed.  
 

16. Consider approval of meeting minutes: Regular Mtg. 7/13/20 & Special Mtg. 7/17/20 (D&V). 
A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Spooner to approve 7/13/20 
regular meeting minutes. Vote was unanimous, 6-0. 

A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Spooner to approve 7/17/20 
special meeting minutes with corrections. Mr. McCarthy stated that there is one parenthetical 
reference to a comment he made about the presentation language and said it was problematic. He 
stated that he doesn’t believe he made a reference to pronouns but may have and would like to turn 
that parenthetical into a statement that the language of the presenters was problematic. Vote was 
unanimous, 6-0.  

17. Consider approval of warrant: 7/31/20 (D&V). 



 

11 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Hawkins; seconded by Alderman Spooner to approve 7/31/20 
warrant. Vote was unanimous, 6-0.  

18. Adjourn 
A motion was made by Alderman McCarthy; seconded by Alderman Spooner to adjourn meeting at 
9:15 pm.  
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Kristen Smith 

Community Relations Coordinator 

 

 

 



08/31/2020                                       CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                    Page 1 of 17

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 CJCDEP    DENNIS GABREE                  GABREE       Savings                      600.00        0.00      600.00    83279 08/03/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 175          Disinfectant Fogging         360.00        0.00      360.00    83280 08/07/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 176          Disinfectant Fogging         400.00        0.00      400.00    83280 08/07/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 177          Disinfectant Fogging of      365.00        0.00      365.00    83280 08/07/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 178          Disinfectant fogging of      280.00        0.00      280.00    83280 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1405.00

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90364/2      HARD PLASTIC ID TAG           14.53        0.00       14.53    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90485/2      HILLMAN FASTNERS               1.80        0.00        1.80    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90492/2      GORILLA SUPERGLUE 2PK 3G       4.99        0.00        4.99    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90506/2      TIES CABLE 14"WHT 100PK       99.41        0.00       99.41    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90511/2      KNIFE RETRACT UTIL - ACE       2.79        0.00        2.79    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90513/2      WEIMAN E-TRONIC WIPES         21.98        0.00       21.98    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90528/2      ALL SEASONS HOSE5/8"X25'     122.37        0.00      122.37    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90534/2      HILLMAN FASTNERS              23.66        0.00       23.66    83281 08/07/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90552/2      Paint for Dispatch            31.99        0.00       31.99    83281 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       323.52

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111-519556-0 chemicals                   4600.00        0.00     4600.00    83282 08/07/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   161T-WHJJ-ML Nikki's Knick Knacks Und     203.40        0.00      203.40    83283 08/07/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   16L9-T4VK-MC Animal trap                  142.41        0.00      142.41    83283 08/07/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   1F1C-TVKR-NJ Foam, 11 oz, 12 count         23.88        0.00       23.88    83283 08/07/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   1PRP-3FXW-PF Duck, Spotted Leopard, B     124.40        0.00      124.40    83283 08/07/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   1XP1-R7C4-63 Canon PGI-250/ CLI-251 5      84.35        0.00       84.35    83283 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       578.44

 BENNETT   BENNETT PLUMBING & HEATING LLC 3215         6/29/20 - Install water      395.00        0.00      395.00    83284 08/07/20

 BENNETT   BENNETT PLUMBING & HEATING LLC 3218         City pool building repai    1668.75        0.00     1668.75    83284 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      2063.75

 RECREF    BETHANY IRISH                  Bethany Iris Bethany Irish                198.00        0.00      198.00    83285 08/07/20

 012750    BURLINGTON COMMUNICATION SER C BCS6407      Warranty contract            600.00        0.00      600.00    83286 08/07/20

 CITYBTOWN CITY OF BURLINGTON, VT - VMC   WW0620       Dewatering                  3005.80        0.00     3005.80    83287 08/07/20

 020100    CLEAN WATERS INC               11132        Charge-Pack 298 Cationic    4342.24        0.00     4342.24    83288 08/07/20

 023100    CRYSTAL ROCK LLC               177303480721 Water                         67.12        0.00       67.12    83289 08/07/20

 028470    E J BARRETTE & SONS            SHIELD-SPLAS electrical or special         54.30        0.00       54.30    83290 08/07/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5729648      LOCATOR                     1191.85        0.00     1191.85    83291 08/07/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5735334      STOCK                         19.03        0.00       19.03    83291 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1210.88



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 2

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     338937       St Albans WWTF               140.00        0.00      140.00    83292 08/07/20

 029750    ESSEX RENTAL & SALES CENTER    10758797-000 SIGN,RU 48"X48" HI DETOU     390.00        0.00      390.00    83293 08/07/20

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             67981324-2   0|B/V 375 PVC 1"              57.48        0.00       57.48    83294 08/07/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-114089   wax                           25.95        0.00       25.95    83295 08/07/20

 031800    FISHER SCIENTIFIC CO.          4157609      AL 10X7 NOTICE AUTH PERS       9.09        0.00        9.09    83296 08/07/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1492195      79 REWES DR                 1182.16        0.00     1182.16    83297 08/07/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1496880      79 REWES DR                  124.25        0.00      124.25    83297 08/07/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1496962      30 BARLOW ST                 200.37        0.00      200.37    83297 08/07/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1497282      67 ALDIS RD                   43.43        0.00       43.43    83297 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1550.21

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4509         Commercial Liquid           2613.52        0.00     2613.52    83298 08/07/20

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4524         Commercial Liquid           2605.20        0.00     2605.20    83298 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      5218.72

 ISLANDTRE ISLAND TREE SERVICE            576944       tree removal                2700.00        0.00     2700.00    83299 08/07/20

 046250    J & L SERVICE CENTER, INC      50332        towing                       200.00        0.00      200.00    83300 08/07/20

 RECREF    KEVIN COLLING                  Kevin Collin Kevin Colling                470.00        0.00      470.00    83301 08/07/20

 049150    KEVIN SMITH SPORTS             270557       Coveralls                    126.25        0.00      126.25    83302 08/07/20

 052650    LEADBEATER CONSULTING          TLC080220A   and offsite for COSA - W     250.00        0.00      250.00    83303 08/07/20

 055850    MAHER CORP                     26978        0M3.2200.PFP Watson Marl     585.53        0.00      585.53    83304 08/07/20

 CJCREST   MELISSA LAROSE                 2019-12884A  Melissa Larose                50.00        0.00       50.00    83305 08/07/20

 MMW       MOUNTAIN MACHINE WORKS         43770        RBC idler                  39769.00        0.00    39769.00    83306 08/07/20

 062400    N E M R C                      46237        Setting up Tax bills         253.75        0.00      253.75    83307 08/07/20

 NEPBA     NEPBA COMPTROLLER LOCAL #420   PR 080720    PR 080720                    600.00        0.00      600.00    83308 08/07/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-190742  WRENCH                        17.99        0.00       17.99    83309 08/07/20

 077681    RUGGIANO ENGINEERING INC       15095        Stevens Brook Diversion      905.00        0.00      905.00    83310 08/07/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4329674      Total Fuel:                   40.42        0.00       40.42    83311 08/07/20

 080100    SEVEN DAYS, INC                205570       Downtown Ad in Staytripp     824.50        0.00      824.50    83312 08/07/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 3

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 081320    SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LAB       0452472-IN   Orange pain and chalk         44.45        0.00       44.45    83313 08/07/20

 081500    SLACK CHEMICAL CO, INC         406768       307 G Caustic 25%            640.71        0.00      640.71    83314 08/07/20

 081500    SLACK CHEMICAL CO, INC         407138       307 G Caustic 25%            641.30        0.00      641.30    83314 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1282.01

 SMITTYS   SMITTY'S CLEAN SWEEP           For July 202 Cleaning                    1102.50        0.00     1102.50    83315 08/07/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    306616       ICE CREAM NORTHSTAR IC B     173.00        0.00      173.00    83316 08/07/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    413717       SPRAYER BOTTLE HORSE 36O       5.98        0.00        5.98    83316 08/07/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    413738       RATCHET TIEDOWN 2PK           54.47        0.00       54.47    83316 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       233.45

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 104254       2X12X12 #1 / 2 PRESSURE      672.14        0.00      672.14    83317 08/07/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105030       BRUSH 2" SLVR TIP THIN A      48.19        0.00       48.19    83317 08/07/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105061       SAKRETE CONCRETE MIX, 80     146.50        0.00      146.50    83317 08/07/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105111       SAKRETE CONCRETE MIX, 80     -70.32        0.00      -70.32    83317 08/07/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105116       HANDRAIL BRACKETS STN NC      80.40        0.00       80.40    83317 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       876.91

 SUNSHINE  SUNSHINE FILTERS OF PINELLAS,  139593A      filter element               173.69        0.00      173.69    83318 08/07/20

 REFPKTI   TOBY'S TREATS                  707739       Green Up Day                  39.50        0.00       39.50    83319 08/07/20

 090925    TOWN OF ST ALBANS              39,300552-17 Town taxes                   786.08        0.00      786.08    83320 08/07/20

 090925    TOWN OF ST ALBANS              552-174-1253 Town Taxes                  5182.76        0.00     5182.76    83320 08/07/20

 090925    TOWN OF ST ALBANS              552-174-1254 real estate taxes            704.08        0.00      704.08    83320 08/07/20

 090925    TOWN OF ST ALBANS              552-174-125A Town taxes                  1226.16        0.00     1226.16    83320 08/07/20

 090925    TOWN OF ST ALBANS              552-174-125B Town Taxes                  4880.72        0.00     4880.72    83320 08/07/20

 090925    TOWN OF ST ALBANS              552-174-125C Town taxes                  1700.24        0.00     1700.24    83320 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total     14480.04

 044550    VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-3 080720       080720 PR                   3570.69        0.00     3570.69    83321 08/07/20

 098850    VERMONT RECREATION & PARKS ASS 01426        membership                   285.00        0.00      285.00    83322 08/07/20

 096350    VERMONT TROPHY & ENGRAVING INC 81259        Mount badges/engrave         314.03        0.00      314.03    83323 08/07/20

 VHB       VHB                            0321145      Fonda Consulting - FY20     1125.00        0.00     1125.00    83324 08/07/20

 VHB       VHB                            0321145A     Fonda Consulting - FY21      233.75        0.00      233.75    83324 08/07/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1358.75

 VMERS-B   VMERS DB - B                   JULY 2020 PR PR July 2020               21376.93        0.00    21376.93    83325 08/07/20

 VMERS-C   VMERS DB - C                   JULY 2020 PR July 2020 PR               21003.47        0.00    21003.47    83326 08/07/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 4

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 105060    WRIGHTS EXCAVATING             3B           sidewalks                 144433.44        0.00   144433.44    83327 08/07/20

 REFPKTI   AUSTIN LECLAIR                 LECLAIR PR   PR                           499.06        0.00      499.06    83328 08/07/20

 REFPKTI   HAVEN ZADA                     PR ZADA      PR                           665.87        0.00      665.87    83329 08/07/20

 REFPKTI   TREY POQUETTE                  POQUETTE     PR                           187.18        0.00      187.18    83330 08/07/20

 REFPKTI   ZACHARY MARTELL                MARTELL      PR                            77.55        0.00       77.55    83331 08/07/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 179          Disinfectant fogging of      400.00        0.00      400.00    83332 08/14/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 180          Disinfectant fogging of      280.00        0.00      280.00    83332 08/14/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 181          Disinfectant fogging of      400.00        0.00      400.00    83332 08/14/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 182          Disinfectant fogging of      280.00        0.00      280.00    83332 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1360.00

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90546/2      RYL INT PP SG UWB 1QT         30.47        0.00       30.47    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90568/2      RAKE BOW 14 TINES 54"L         9.99        0.00        9.99    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90574/2      HAND-TRUCK D HANDLE 800#      69.99        0.00       69.99    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90583/2      TUBE SAND QUIKRETE 60#        65.90        0.00       65.90    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90601/2      LINK CHAIN LAP 1/4X1.25"      29.88        0.00       29.88    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90610/2      CORD EXTN 12/3 SJTW 100'      97.98        0.00       97.98    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90611/2      TAPE FLAGGING ORANGE150'      18.74        0.00       18.74    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90627/2      MASKING TAPE1.41X60YD CR       5.99        0.00        5.99    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90628/2      PADLOCK COMB2"RESET 175D      17.99        0.00       17.99    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90637/2      SPIDER KILLER 16OZ AER        11.98        0.00       11.98    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90643/2      SB BALL VALVE 3/4 LF          46.35        0.00       46.35    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90652/2      BATTERY LITHIUM 2450           9.58        0.00        9.58    83333 08/14/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         943760/2     TAPE BARCDE CAUTION1000'     119.85        0.00      119.85    83333 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       534.69

 {O!VOID!} --- None ---                   -- VOID --                                  0.00        0.00        0.00    83334 08/14/20

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111-519459-0 CHEMICAL CORPORATION        1539.36        0.00     1539.36    83335 08/14/20

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111-519477-A CHEMICAL CORPORATION         326.70        0.00      326.70    83335 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1866.06

 002500    AM CARE AMBULANCE SERVICE      08012020C    FY21                       12343.36        0.00    12343.36    83336 08/14/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   16G7-KHCM-J3 USB Gaming Microphone, T     134.94        0.00      134.94    83337 08/14/20

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   1GJT-13LQ-LR Pivoting Pockets for Wal     242.75        0.00      242.75    83337 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       377.69

 RECREF    ASHLEY MURPHY                  1641263      Murphy                       212.00        0.00      212.00    83338 08/14/20

 SYLVTRUCK BENJAMIN SYLVESTER             510          June                        3850.00        0.00     3850.00    83339 08/14/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 5

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 SYLVTRUCK BENJAMIN SYLVESTER             511          July                        4950.00        0.00     4950.00    83339 08/14/20

 SYLVTRUCK BENJAMIN SYLVESTER             512          August                      5500.00        0.00     5500.00    83339 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total     14300.00

 BLACKDOG  BLACK DOG ELECTRICAL SERVICE L 5354         ALARM SYSTEM MONITORING      199.00        0.00      199.00    83340 08/14/20

 010100    BONNETT'S WELDING SHOP         11660        Inspection on Street          75.00        0.00       75.00    83341 08/14/20

 BOURBEAU  BOURBEAU AGGREGATE LLC         1037         Plant Mix                   1536.00        0.00     1536.00    83342 08/14/20

 014750    CAMP PRECAST CONCRETE PRDS, IN 44792        X 24" X 6" HIGH(372LBS)     1791.00        0.00     1791.00    83343 08/14/20

 CFSWMA    CFSWMA 15-16                   1196646      Sludge                     11130.50        0.00    11130.50    83344 08/14/20

 019750    CITY OF ST ALBANS              Afterglow 20 afterglow to charity acc    2000.00        0.00     2000.00    83345 08/14/20

 CLARKFLWR CLARKS HOUSE OF FLOWERS        33-300-2020  Downtown Contract           2175.56        0.00     2175.56    83346 08/14/20

 DEWCO     DEW CONSTRUCTION               12A          Congress  Main             75910.08        0.00    75910.08    83347 08/14/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5728351      vic gasket                   198.15        0.00      198.15    83348 08/14/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5738331      PAVING REPAIRS              7678.93        0.00     7678.93    83348 08/14/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5741495      24X24X1.5" CB               1374.75        0.00     1374.75    83348 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      9251.83

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     339014       WSID 5130 TC                  50.00        0.00       50.00    83349 08/14/20

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     340598       St Albans WWTF               140.00        0.00      140.00    83349 08/14/20

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     340897       St Albans WWTF               140.00        0.00      140.00    83349 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       330.00

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             68079139     0|PRES GA PUREPRO             79.30        0.00       79.30    83350 08/14/20

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             68086228     0|SILT FENCE 36"X100'         38.04        0.00       38.04    83350 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       117.34

 031095    FASTENAL                       VTSTA81121   8.8 HCS 6MM-1.0x12 Z           3.50        0.00        3.50    83351 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-113902   Diamond Grip Latex Glove      41.90        0.00       41.90    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-114089A  WAX                           25.95        0.00       25.95    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-114558   signal                        59.50        0.00       59.50    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-114619   gates rubber                  67.54        0.00       67.54    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-114810   filter                        17.51        0.00       17.51    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115063   Igni t ion Swi t ch           31.33        0.00       31.33    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115064   V ORIG INV: 115063 2020/     -31.33        0.00      -31.33    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115085   GATES RUBBER 18.87 11.18      11.18        0.00       11.18    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115086   Wire Terminal Clip             7.48        0.00        7.48    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115386   Standard Mini Bulb             4.50        0.00        4.50    83352 08/14/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 6

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115415   Brake Hydraulic Bulk Lin     116.76        0.00      116.76    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115442   1500 A                        14.94        0.00       14.94    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115471   1/2 -20 Inverted Flare N       2.36        0.00        2.36    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115492   HVAC Blend Door Actuator      21.06        0.00       21.06    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115621   car 7                        548.17        0.00      548.17    83352 08/14/20

 FISHER    FISHER AUTO PARTS INC.         308-115623   1500 Classic 4.3L V6 OEV      44.11        0.00       44.11    83352 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       982.96

 {O!VOID!} --- None ---                   -- VOID --                                  0.00        0.00        0.00    83353 08/14/20

 032325    FOOD CITY                      01-230937    food                           2.78        0.00        2.78    83354 08/14/20

 032325    FOOD CITY                      03-136607    day camp                      22.75        0.00       22.75    83354 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total        25.53

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1496869      100 NORTH MAIN ST            245.59        0.00      245.59    83355 08/14/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1496877      32 LOWER WELDON              199.35        0.00      199.35    83355 08/14/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1496878      KINGMAN  MAIN                505.74        0.00      505.74    83355 08/14/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1496879      36 ALDIS ST                  320.07        0.00      320.07    83355 08/14/20

 035275    GAUTHIER TRUCKING COMPANY, INC 1497816      12 CONGRESS ST               250.87        0.00      250.87    83355 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1521.62

 GARVEYS   GERALD GARVEY                  852078       playground chips            3000.00        0.00     3000.00    83356 08/14/20

 HELFRICH  GOLD STAR DOG TRAINING LLC     33           puppy class                 1620.00        0.00     1620.00    83357 08/14/20

 GORHAM    GORHAM LEASING GROUP, LLC      VT1843-02B   2014 CMC SIERRA             1085.00        0.00     1085.00    83358 08/14/20

 100800    GRAINGER                       9599150621   437U67 PRESSURE GAUGE,0       51.62        0.00       51.62    83359 08/14/20

 100800    GRAINGER                       9600838909   22UH17 FLAT WASHER,1-1/8      12.38        0.00       12.38    83359 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total        64.00

 GREENDOLP GREEN DOLPHIN, LLC             2252         195 Federal                 9398.77        0.00     9398.77    83360 08/14/20

 GREENFEET GREEN FEET GARDENING           744          GARDENING                   5000.00        0.00     5000.00    83361 08/14/20

 GREENFEET GREEN FEET GARDENING           745          GARDENING                   2200.00        0.00     2200.00    83361 08/14/20

 GREENFEET GREEN FEET GARDENING           751          GARDENING                   3200.00        0.00     3200.00    83361 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total     10400.00

 038600    GREEN VALLEY REPAIR, LLC       46149        Submersible Grinder Pump    5200.30        0.00     5200.30    83362 08/14/20

 GREEST    GSPP FF FUND II LLC            INV000979    Solar                      16984.86        0.00    16984.86    83363 08/14/20

 041085    HARVEST EQUIPMENT              IS55341      EYEBOLT                      130.91        0.00      130.91    83364 08/14/20

 041085    HARVEST EQUIPMENT              IS55341A     Jumper                        21.76        0.00       21.76    83364 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       152.67



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 7

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4662         Sodium Bisulfite Solutio    1830.18        0.00     1830.18    83365 08/14/20

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4663         Commercial Liquid           2875.60        0.00     2875.60    83365 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      4705.78

 REFPKTI   JAY WHITEHOUSE                 Jay Whitehou Tire Replacement             200.00        0.00      200.00    83366 08/14/20

 KIMBALL   KIMBALL MIDWEST                7980568      CREDIT IS FOR INV.           -90.56        0.00      -90.56    83367 08/14/20

 KIMBALL   KIMBALL MIDWEST                8125842      5627215T                     231.57        0.00      231.57    83367 08/14/20

 KIMBALL   KIMBALL MIDWEST                8136310      5629815T                      77.49        0.00       77.49    83367 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       218.50

 052650    LEADBEATER CONSULTING          TLC062520AA  Remote - Tune up and upg     100.00        0.00      100.00    83368 08/14/20

 052650    LEADBEATER CONSULTING          TLC080520A   RJC - Initial setup of n     300.00        0.00      300.00    83368 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       400.00

 053500    LENNY'S SHOE & APPAREL         7/31/2020    Clothing Allowance          1238.57        0.00     1238.57    83369 08/14/20

 MSG       MAIN STREET GRAPHICS, LLC      9752         embroidery                   188.00        0.00      188.00    83370 08/14/20

 MARKMAGI  MARK GAGNON                    Stage Magic  Magic Show                   550.00        0.00      550.00    83371 08/14/20

 REFPKTI   NNECAPA                        Chip Sawyer  Online Conference             45.00        0.00       45.00    83372 08/14/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-188903  Belt and tensioner for c      87.62        0.00       87.62    83373 08/14/20

 072175    ODYSSEY ADVISORS, INC.         5506         Retirement Plan             4025.00        0.00     4025.00    83374 08/14/20

 070950    PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC.          1093087      Asphalt                      766.08        0.00      766.08    83375 08/14/20

 RUCKI     R FAMILY DOJO                  Class 081120 op instructor               1440.00        0.00     1440.00    83376 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4315710      Total Fuel:                   82.77        0.00       82.77    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4315711      Regular                      191.80        0.00      191.80    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4315712      Plant Regular                561.83        0.00      561.83    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4315713      Total Fuel:                   34.54        0.00       34.54    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4315714      Total Fuel:                  700.57        0.00      700.57    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4329670      Total Fuel:                   88.88        0.00       88.88    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4329671      Total Fuel:                   95.45        0.00       95.45    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4329672      Total Fuel:                  516.70        0.00      516.70    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4329673      Total Fuel:                   60.50        0.00       60.50    83377 08/14/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4329675      Total Fuel:                  464.29        0.00      464.29    83377 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      2797.33

 SANITARY  SANITARY EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC 01-38308     oil                          753.55        0.00      753.55    83378 08/14/20

 RECREF    SARAH WEBB                     Sarah Webb   Sarah Webb                   772.00        0.00      772.00    83379 08/14/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 8

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 084125    ST ALBANS CITY SCHOOL          Lease Summer Summer Camp Building Use    1990.00        0.00     1990.00    83380 08/14/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    309304       ICE CREAM NORTHSTAR IC V     130.00        0.00      130.00    83381 08/14/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    413956       UNION LONG HANDLE SQUARE      35.98        0.00       35.98    83381 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       165.98

 084750    ST ALBANS MESSENGER            295137       Hearing Notices              229.80        0.00      229.80    83382 08/14/20

 084750    ST ALBANS MESSENGER            295616       Hard'ack Pool Act 250 No     250.00        0.00      250.00    83382 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       479.80

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 104864       HAMMER BIT 3/8X4X6            28.98        0.00       28.98    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 104922       QUICKRITE ANCHOR EPOXY        19.99        0.00       19.99    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 104938       MIDWEST FASTENER              10.76        0.00       10.76    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105013       STAKE FLAGBLUE 21IN            9.99        0.00        9.99    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105183       CAULK 10.5OZ CLR LEXEL        59.94        0.00       59.94    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105240       UGL FAST PLUG 5 GAL PAIL      62.99        0.00       62.99    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105428       BLOCK PATIO 2" x 8" x 16     152.95        0.00      152.95    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105456       2X10X8 #1 / 2 PRESSURE T     204.70        0.00      204.70    83383 08/14/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105874       FLEXZILLA GARDEN HOSE 5/      98.94        0.00       98.94    83383 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       649.24

 086701    SURPASS CHEMICAL COMPANY INC   348992       Sodium Hypochlorite         2173.02        0.00     2173.02    83384 08/14/20

 SWANTON   SWANTON VILLAGE                458785       Electric 06/26/2020 - 07     104.57        0.00      104.57    83385 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7837         State inspection, unmark      50.00        0.00       50.00    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7838         Remove/replace door actu     340.00        0.00      340.00    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7839         Oil change/service, SCU       53.93        0.00       53.93    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7840         DEPT. 2013 GMC SIERRA 6.      77.00        0.00       77.00    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7844         Replace drive belt and t     102.00        0.00      102.00    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7848         Oil change/service, moun      62.47        0.00       62.47    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7850         Oil change and service,       43.72        0.00       43.72    83386 08/14/20

 091275    TRAINERS AUTOMOTIVE CENTER     7X36         Computer check car 5         136.00        0.00      136.00    83386 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       865.12

 TREADLIGH TREAD LIGHTLY LANDSCAPING LLC  277          7/7/2020 Fairfax mow and     810.00        0.00      810.00    83387 08/14/20

 UNDRGRND  UNDERGROUND TESTING & SERVICES VT0720120    07-22-20 Supply and Inst    4875.00        0.00     4875.00    83388 08/14/20

 092750    USA BLUE BOOK                  315644       UltraBeads w/Cherry Scen     147.50        0.00      147.50    83389 08/14/20

 092750    USA BLUE BOOK                  317053       8 1/2 X 14 Ruled Pads         20.95        0.00       20.95    83389 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       168.45

 095875    VERMONT OFFENDER WORK PROGRAMS W1036        â™¦â™¦â™¦MOBILE COVID SC     356.71        0.00      356.71    83390 08/14/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                          Page 9

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 VICTSTAN  VICTOR STANLEY, INC.           SI45753      litter receptacle           7486.00        0.00     7486.00    83391 08/14/20

 101800    WATERSHED CONSULTING ASSOCIATE 2020-1056    Phosphorous Control Plan   10964.00        0.00    10964.00    83392 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4617497      removal                      619.40        0.00      619.40    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4618266      removal                      619.40        0.00      619.40    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4622883      83 Rewes Drive              1506.60        0.00     1506.60    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4657975      removal                      573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4658268      removal                      573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4674239      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4674506      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4674765      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4675563      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4676957      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4677184      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4678824      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4679574      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4679748      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4679835      Handy Drive Pump station     525.00        0.00      525.00    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4679988      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4681278      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4681500      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

 027350    WIND RIVER DBA DRUMMAC SEPTIC  4682320      Sludge Hauling               573.52        0.00      573.52    83393 08/14/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total     11873.20

 {O!VOID!} --- None ---                   -- VOID --                                  0.00        0.00        0.00    83394 08/14/20

 WOODWOOD  WOOD & WOOD                    7778         Deposit for Parking Gara    1350.00        0.00     1350.00    83395 08/14/20

 NEPBA     NEPBA COMPTROLLER LOCAL #420   PR 082120    NEPBA                        600.00        0.00      600.00    83396 08/21/20

 RJCPETTY  PETTY CASH RJC                 082120       Petty Cash ID's              100.00        0.00      100.00    83397 08/21/20

 044550    VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-3 082120 PR    PR 082120                   3584.60        0.00     3584.60    83398 08/21/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 183          Disinfectant fogging of      360.00        0.00      360.00    83399 08/24/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 184          Disinfectant fogging of      320.00        0.00      320.00    83399 08/24/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 185          Fogging of cruisers, off    2930.00        0.00     2930.00    83399 08/24/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 187          Disinfectant fogging of      380.00        0.00      380.00    83399 08/24/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 188          Disinfectant fogging of      280.00        0.00      280.00    83399 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      4270.00

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90662/2      CHAIN COIL 3/16" ZN150'       16.63        0.00       16.63    83400 08/24/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90682/2      TLPHON LIN CABL 15'L WHT       7.99        0.00        7.99    83400 08/24/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90800/2      HILLMAN FASTNERS              11.35        0.00       11.35    83400 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total        35.97



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 10

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 032328    ALDRICH + ELLIOTT, PC          79268        aldis                       2490.00        0.00     2490.00    83401 08/24/20

 032328    ALDRICH + ELLIOTT, PC          79269        Aldis hill                  5617.52        0.00     5617.52    83401 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      8107.52

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111-519604-0 CHEMICAL CORPORATION         692.20        0.00      692.20    83402 08/24/20

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111-519606-0 CHEMICAL CORPORATION        1459.45        0.00     1459.45    83402 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      2151.65

 AMAZON    AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC   1QTV-PLW3-31 Windex bnm Outdoor Glass      97.05        0.00       97.05    83403 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   AMY FLETCHER                   primary 202B primary 2020                  19.18        0.00       19.18    83404 08/24/20

 BARADI    BARABY, DIANNA                 primary 2020 Election Worker               65.76        0.00       65.76    83405 08/24/20

 BENSTR    BENEFIT STRATEGIES LLC         2390         Health                       650.00        0.00      650.00    83406 08/24/20

 BENSTR    BENEFIT STRATEGIES LLC         2391         Health                      1100.00        0.00     1100.00    83406 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1750.00

 BIGGIEH   BIGGIE HELENE                  2020 Primary Election Worker               68.50        0.00       68.50    83407 08/24/20

 010900    BOULERICE MICHAEL              primary 2020 primary 2020                 117.82        0.00      117.82    83408 08/24/20

 012750    BURLINGTON COMMUNICATION SER C BCS6428      Kenwoods and antennas       4873.75        0.00     4873.75    83409 08/24/20

 BUSHEYMIK BUSHEY, MICHAEL                primary 2020 election expense             134.26        0.00      134.26    83410 08/24/20

 RECREF    CARLEEN SMYTH                  1642020      Carleen Smith                 40.00        0.00       40.00    83411 08/24/20

 CERTLA    CERTIFIED LABORATORIES         7047253      spectra                     1048.59        0.00     1048.59    83412 08/24/20

 SPOONER   CHAD SPOONER                   primary 2020 Election Worker               46.58        0.00       46.58    83413 08/24/20

 CONNERCOM CONNER COMMUNICATIONS, INC.    839-812      dispatch intercom            366.99        0.00      366.99    83414 08/24/20

 CORRIGAND CORRIGAN DONNA                 primary 2020 Election Worker               90.42        0.00       90.42    83415 08/24/20

 COTT      COTT SYSTEMS, INC.             135829       MONTHLY RESOLUTION 3 HOS     445.00        0.00      445.00    83416 08/24/20

 024900    DESORCIE EMERGENCY PRODUCTS LL 16166        Pump Testing hrs - 3 uni     506.25        0.00      506.25    83417 08/24/20

 CJCREST   DIANA COLEMAN                  PARK#2019-11 Dianna Coleman                24.88        0.00       24.88    83418 08/24/20

 DOMINIOND DOMINION DIAGNOSTICS, LLC      #6213632     DOMINION DIAGNOSTICS, LL     118.00        0.00      118.00    83419 08/24/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5723291      CITY FIRE                    550.00        0.00      550.00    83420 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   EDEN FULLER                    primary 202A Election Worker               90.42        0.00       90.42    83421 08/24/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 11

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     341030       WSID 5130 TC                  75.00        0.00       75.00    83422 08/24/20

 029750    ESSEX RENTAL & SALES CENTER    10758177-000 V-BELT, RIPPED 4PK998LB      940.93        0.00      940.93    83423 08/24/20

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             67999534     0|STIFNR INS 2"              166.62        0.00      166.62    83424 08/24/20

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             68213405     0|ELL 45DEG 4" PVC            21.37        0.00       21.37    83424 08/24/20

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             68213610     0|ELL 45DEG 4" PVC            73.70        0.00       73.70    83424 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       261.69

 031095    FASTENAL                       VTSTA81003   Sterilizing wipes             79.88        0.00       79.88    83425 08/24/20

 032325    FOOD CITY                      01-249852    IdOD                          98.88        0.00       98.88    83426 08/24/20

 032325    FOOD CITY                      01-253332    (OODClrt                      26.94        0.00       26.94    83426 08/24/20

 032325    FOOD CITY                      02-201451    FDdd                          25.96        0.00       25.96    83426 08/24/20

 032325    FOOD CITY                      594.04       day camp                      25.91        0.00       25.91    83426 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       177.69

 034750    GALLS INCORPORATED             016110429    Holbrook w/prizm             259.68        0.00      259.68    83427 08/24/20

 035500    GEORGE S WOOD INC              291522       103V EAG ENFORCER            584.00        0.00      584.00    83428 08/24/20

 038550    GREEN VALLEY LOCK              32785        Lock Smith                    26.00        0.00       26.00    83429 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   GWEN GRAY                      primary 2020 election expense              90.42        0.00       90.42    83430 08/24/20

 040750    HANDY BUICK GMC CADILLAC INC.  610770       inspection                   272.70        0.00      272.70    83431 08/24/20

 041085    HARVEST EQUIPMENT              IS54922      BLADE                         65.67        0.00       65.67    83432 08/24/20

 044500    IDENTI-KIT SOLUTIONS           106934       ANNUAL LEASE                 408.00        0.00      408.00    83433 08/24/20

 RECREF    JOANN FORAN                    Joann Foran  refund                        40.00        0.00       40.00    83434 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   JOHN CIOFFI                    2020 PrimarA election worker               46.58        0.00       46.58    83435 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   KATHI FULLER                   2020 PrimarB election expense              90.42        0.00       90.42    83436 08/24/20

 BOKANFORD KB ACQUISITIONS LLC            1UP-PI3C1    key blank                    152.25        0.00      152.25    83437 08/24/20

 CJCREST   KEVIN BEAN                     2019-06169A  kevin bean                    25.00        0.00       25.00    83438 08/24/20

 049150    KEVIN SMITH SPORTS             270626       masks                        792.00        0.00      792.00    83439 08/24/20

 KIMBALL   KIMBALL MIDWEST                8092908      5620815T                     952.14        0.00      952.14    83440 08/24/20

 050200    KRUPP, SUSAN C                 Primary 2020 Election Worker               65.76        0.00       65.76    83441 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   LAUNIE KETTLER                 2020 Primary Primary                       49.32        0.00       49.32    83442 08/24/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 12

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 RECREF    LEAH DZIEDZIC                  Leah Dziedzi refund                        80.00        0.00       80.00    83443 08/24/20

 LINCOLN   LINCOLN AQUATICS               AMOUNT:S2.40 pool equip                  2267.68        0.00     2267.68    83444 08/24/20

 055425    LUNEAU, JOSEPH                 primary 2020 Election Worker               46.58        0.00       46.58    83445 08/24/20

 MARKLEANN MARKLE, ANN                    primary 2020 Election Worker               60.28        0.00       60.28    83446 08/24/20

 058625    MCNEIL, LEDDY & SHEAHAN        34157        Current Legal Fees          1710.00        0.00     1710.00    83447 08/24/20

 MELANSON  MELANSON HEATH & COMPANY, P.C. 599563       audit services             20000.00        0.00    20000.00    83448 08/24/20

 CJCREST   MELINDA LAPAN                  2019-06169   499 Lake Road                 25.00        0.00       25.00    83449 08/24/20

 CJCREST   MELISSA LAROSE                 #2019-12884  melissa larose                50.00        0.00       50.00    83450 08/24/20

 062400    N E M R C                      46273        Work done remotely by Ch     398.75        0.00      398.75    83451 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-183055  BATTERY                      132.22        0.00      132.22    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-183091  Core Return                  -18.00        0.00      -18.00    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-183157  BATTERY                     -132.22        0.00     -132.22    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-183508  Core Return                  -18.00        0.00      -18.00    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-183743  OIL FILTER                   193.59        0.00      193.59    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-184157  AD ACTUATOR                   22.88        0.00       22.88    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-184159  CABIN FILTER                  11.08        0.00       11.08    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-185036  AD ACTUATOR                  -22.88        0.00      -22.88    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-187626  5GalATF                      239.97        0.00      239.97    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-189349  PWR INVERTER                  54.99        0.00       54.99    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-189391  REGULATOR                     69.99        0.00       69.99    83452 08/24/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-189451  AIR FILTER                   106.03        0.00      106.03    83452 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       639.65

 PELKEY    PELKEYS ARCHERY INC            200813       group                        340.00        0.00      340.00    83453 08/24/20

 PETTINELL PETTINELLI & ASSOCIATES INC    05402        climber rope                  61.00        0.00       61.00    83454 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   RICHARD THAYER                 primary 202F Election Worker               46.58        0.00       46.58    83455 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   RYAN DOYLE                     primary 202C primary 2020                  90.42        0.00       90.42    83456 08/24/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4358505      Total Fuel:                   32.43        0.00       32.43    83457 08/24/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4358506      Total Fuel:                  357.75        0.00      357.75    83457 08/24/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4373645      Total Fuel:                   71.15        0.00       71.15    83457 08/24/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4373646      Total Fuel:                  596.27        0.00      596.27    83457 08/24/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1057.60

 RECREF    SARAH FABRIZIO                 Sarah Fabriz refund                       119.00        0.00      119.00    83458 08/24/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 13

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 079650    SECURSHRED                     341349       Shredding contract            22.00        0.00       22.00    83459 08/24/20

 080850    SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO.           5917-1A      paint                         22.78        0.00       22.78    83460 08/24/20

 SHORT H   SHORT, HELEN                   primary 2020 Election Worker              112.34        0.00      112.34    83461 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   ST ALBANS FOR THE FUTURE       FOTCredit    Credit for FOT Squarespa      47.15        0.00       47.15    83462 08/24/20

 MUSEUM    ST ALBANS HISTORICAL MUSEUM    sponsorship  sponsorship                   95.00        0.00       95.00    83463 08/24/20

 084750    ST ALBANS MESSENGER            295629       Downtown BINGO Ad            750.00        0.00      750.00    83464 08/24/20

 RECREF    STEPHEN WEISS                  Stehen Weiss refund                        40.00        0.00       40.00    83465 08/24/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 105396       SAKRETE POST SET MIX, 40      98.56        0.00       98.56    83466 08/24/20

 CHARJO    TRU-LINE PAINTERS              38 yellow    parking garage               760.00        0.00      760.00    83467 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   TRUDY CIOFFI                   primary 202E primary                       46.58        0.00       46.58    83468 08/24/20

 UNDRGRND  UNDERGROUND TESTING & SERVICES VT0720120A   07-22-20 Supply and Inst    4875.00        0.00     4875.00    83469 08/24/20

 098875    VERMONT RURAL WATER ASSOCIATIO 080420       cris brennan                 280.00        0.00      280.00    83470 08/24/20

 VTTENNIS  VERMONT TENNIS COURT SURFACING H20020       tennis courts                110.00        0.00      110.00    83471 08/24/20

 097150    VLCT/PACIF                     FO20 WC Audi WC audit                   19725.00        0.00    19725.00    83472 08/24/20

 101245    W.B. MASON CO., INC.           08102020     08102020                    1602.40        0.00     1602.40    83473 08/24/20

 REFPKTI   WAYNE BILLADO                  primary 202D primary worker                46.58        0.00       46.58    83474 08/24/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 189          Disinfectant fogging of      280.00        0.00      280.00    83475 08/28/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 190          Disinfectant fogging of      350.00        0.00      350.00    83475 08/28/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 191          Disinfectant fogging of      360.00        0.00      360.00    83475 08/28/20

 TAYLCO    ABOVE & BEYOND BUILDING SERVIC 192          Disinfectant fogging of      280.00        0.00      280.00    83475 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1270.00

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90711/2      STAPLE JT-21 5/16"PK1000       8.62        0.00        8.62    83476 08/28/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90756/2      CLAMP 4-1/2"TO 6-1/2" SS       5.58        0.00        5.58    83476 08/28/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90812/2      NETWORKING CABLE BLUE         49.98        0.00       49.98    83476 08/28/20

 000405    ACE HARDWARE ST ALBANS         90872/2      CHAIN STRT COIL2/0 225'       34.86        0.00       34.86    83476 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total        99.04

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111-519604-A CHEMICAL CORPORATION         692.20        0.00      692.20    83477 08/28/20

 002300    ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEM CORP  111.-519605- CHEMICAL CORPORATION        1459.45        0.00     1459.45    83477 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      2151.65



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 14

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 BARKER    BARKER, JEAN                   Sept 2020    120 North Main              1400.00        0.00     1400.00    83478 08/28/20

 013150    BURNETT, NORMAN                Sept 2020    sept 2020                   1600.00        0.00     1600.00    83479 08/28/20

 013150    BURNETT, NORMAN                sept 2020    36 kingman #5                850.00        0.00      850.00    83479 08/28/20

 013150    BURNETT, NORMAN                sept 2020 2  sept 2020 2                 1050.00        0.00     1050.00    83479 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      3500.00

 018825    CHUCK'S HEATING & AIR CONDITIO W37093       REPAIR                       165.00        0.00      165.00    83480 08/28/20

 020100    CLEAN WATERS INC               11157        Charge-Pack 298 Cationic    4342.24        0.00     4342.24    83481 08/28/20

 020356    CNH  CAPITAL AMERICA  LLC      CS03971      parts, parts without          30.62        0.00       30.62    83482 08/28/20

 020356    CNH  CAPITAL AMERICA  LLC      CS04092      parts, parts without          20.69        0.00       20.69    83482 08/28/20

 020356    CNH  CAPITAL AMERICA  LLC      CS04195      parts, parts without          21.84        0.00       21.84    83482 08/28/20

 020356    CNH  CAPITAL AMERICA  LLC      CS04562      parts, parts without         192.51        0.00      192.51    83482 08/28/20

 020356    CNH  CAPITAL AMERICA  LLC      CS04835      parts, parts without          45.64        0.00       45.64    83482 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       311.30

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  687726       Anticipated Time:             39.99        0.00       39.99    83483 08/28/20

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  687768       filter                        61.62        0.00       61.62    83483 08/28/20

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  688018       1.00 26.46s                   73.04        0.00       73.04    83483 08/28/20

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  688071       !npj p-JOINT                  64.50        0.00       64.50    83483 08/28/20

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  688388       oil                           16.04        0.00       16.04    83483 08/28/20

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  688693       1e ipated Time:                3.35        0.00        3.35    83483 08/28/20

 COTA      COTA SERVICE STATION AND AUTO  689013       Anticipated Time:             16.48        0.00       16.48    83483 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       275.02

 022418    COUNTY COURIER                 C77280       County Courier               325.00        0.00      325.00    83484 08/28/20

 023100    CRYSTAL ROCK LLC               177297350818 H3O                          165.58        0.00      165.58    83485 08/28/20

 DRMPLLC   DOWNS RACHLIN MARTIN PLLC      Farrer retur Farrer deposit               860.00        0.00      860.00    83486 08/28/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5744681      HDPE RISERS                  465.72        0.00      465.72    83487 08/28/20

 027650    E J PRESCOTT INC.              5744707      STOCK                        890.78        0.00      890.78    83487 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      1356.50

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     341700       WSID 5130 TOC/ ALK           160.00        0.00      160.00    83488 08/28/20

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     341786       St Albans WWTF               305.00        0.00      305.00    83488 08/28/20

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     341967       WSID 5130 TC                  50.00        0.00       50.00    83488 08/28/20

 029150    ENDYNE,INC                     342234       St Albans WWTF               140.00        0.00      140.00    83488 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       655.00

 030100    F W WEBB   COMPANY             68314148     0|CRB BX ERIE 6' SM          407.14        0.00      407.14    83489 08/28/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 15

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 1STRL     FIRST RESPONSE LABOR, LLC      1416         Drywall repair              1664.70        0.00     1664.70    83490 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     18552485     past due                      20.98        0.00       20.98    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     20527921     Past due                     115.65        0.00      115.65    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     20528214     past due                     146.20        0.00      146.20    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     26686225     past due                      63.30        0.00       63.30    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     28505993     past due                     158.16        0.00      158.16    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     28678354     past due credit             -158.16        0.00     -158.16    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     30142311     past due                      35.38        0.00       35.38    83491 08/28/20

 FLEETPRID FLEETPRIDE                     40485453     past due                     418.58        0.00      418.58    83491 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       800.09

 CJCREST   FOSGATE PROPERTIES             2019-07560   David Fosgate                100.00        0.00      100.00    83492 08/28/20

 034750    GALLS INCORPORATED             016175646    Holbrook Mattort-Thomas      181.70        0.00      181.70    83493 08/28/20

 034750    GALLS INCORPORATED             016175714    Training boots-Garrant a      80.32        0.00       80.32    83493 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       262.02

 035500    GEORGE S WOOD INC              7535-010193- Tires                        600.00        0.00      600.00    83494 08/28/20

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4786         Commercial Liquid Alumin    4680.00        0.00     4680.00    83495 08/28/20

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4787         Commercial Liquid Alumin     626.24        0.00      626.24    83495 08/28/20

 042750    HOLLAND COMPANY, INC.          4932         PCH 180 PCH 180             4768.44        0.00     4768.44    83495 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total     10074.68

 051295    LAKE STREET AUTO SERVICE & SAL 27983        2012 Ford - F550 Super D    2962.17        0.00     2962.17    83496 08/28/20

 052650    LEADBEATER CONSULTING          TLC081620A   Onsite RJC - Updated and     150.00        0.00      150.00    83497 08/28/20

 RECREF    LISA BROOKS                    Lisa Brooks  Yoga Class                    72.00        0.00       72.00    83498 08/28/20

 PROPTAXES MARVIN NEEDLEMAN PROPERTIES LL NEEDLEMANPRO 11040067- MARVIN NEEDLEM    4803.60        0.00     4803.60    83499 08/28/20

 060000    MIMMO'S PIZZA                  1056         Pizza for demonstration      190.75        0.00      190.75    83500 08/28/20

 MTETURF   MTE TURF EQUIPMENT SOLUTIONS,  03-278949    sidewalk plow              49170.95        0.00    49170.95    83501 08/28/20

 MES-NY    MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES   IN1486927    SCBA testing                1950.65        0.00     1950.65    83502 08/28/20

 065295    NFPA                           7782804Y     Professional Qualificati      52.00        0.00       52.00    83503 08/28/20

 065295    NFPA                           7785813Y     Life Safety Code 15          225.00        0.00      225.00    83503 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       277.00

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-187782A AIR FILTER                    53.43        0.00       53.43    83504 08/28/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-188141  FUNNEL                        10.68        0.00       10.68    83504 08/28/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-189561  MEGACRIMP                     15.62        0.00       15.62    83504 08/28/20



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 16

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-189732  FLUID PUMP                    41.97        0.00       41.97    83504 08/28/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-189742  FLUID PUMP                    -5.00        0.00       -5.00    83504 08/28/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-190452  VPOWER PLUG                    5.98        0.00        5.98    83504 08/28/20

 010050    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC       5671-190455  VPOWER PLUG                   10.77        0.00       10.77    83504 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       133.45

 070950    PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC.          1095139      Asphalt                      126.72        0.00      126.72    83505 08/28/20

 075610    RHODE ISLAND NOVELTY           IN4161694    STAR TROPHY                  175.32        0.00      175.32    83506 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                289754       Interest                      24.81        0.00       24.81    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                290409       Interest June                 21.64        0.00       21.64    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                291143       Interest July                 16.35        0.00       16.35    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4143103      Total Fuel:                   68.11        0.00       68.11    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4143104      Total Fuel:                   64.93        0.00       64.93    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4143105      Total Fuel:                  583.57        0.00      583.57    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4143106      Total Fuel:                   27.73        0.00       27.73    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4143107      Total Fuel:                  381.00        0.00      381.00    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4200560      Total Fuel:                   72.26        0.00       72.26    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4200561      Total Fuel:                  218.26        0.00      218.26    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4200562      Conventional                  34.15        0.00       34.15    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4200563      Total Fuel:                  189.61        0.00      189.61    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4358507      Total Fuel:                   61.44        0.00       61.44    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4373644      Total Fuel:                   73.91        0.00       73.91    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4373647      Total Fuel:                   56.06        0.00       56.06    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4388236      Plant Regular                 94.88        0.00       94.88    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4388237      Total Fuel:                  364.00        0.00      364.00    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4401900      Regular                      113.56        0.00      113.56    83507 08/28/20

 077950    S B COLLINS INC                4401901      Total Fuel:                   19.68        0.00       19.68    83507 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total      2485.95

 {O!VOID!} --- None ---                   -- VOID --                                  0.00        0.00        0.00    83508 08/28/20

 081500    SLACK CHEMICAL CO, INC         408106       316 G Caustic 25%            658.59        0.00      658.59    83509 08/28/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    414077       BROOM POLY MILKHOUSE 350      25.99        0.00       25.99    83510 08/28/20

 084400    ST ALBANS COOP CREAMERY INC    414247       TRASH CAN GALVANIZED 20       20.49        0.00       20.49    83510 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total        46.48

 084750    ST ALBANS MESSENGER            296180       Downtown BINGO Ad           2250.00        0.00     2250.00    83511 08/28/20

 STANISLAS STANISLAS PROPERTY SERVICES LL Sept 2020    13 Kingman Apt #6            750.00        0.00      750.00    83512 08/28/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 107318       SAKRETE TYPE S MORTAR MI      24.64        0.00       24.64    83513 08/28/20

 086322    STICKS & STUFF                 107583       YEL Marking Crayon           172.83        0.00      172.83    83513 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       197.47



08/31/20                                         CITY OF ST. ALBANS Accounts Payable                                         Page 17

02:29 pm                             Check Warrant Report # 18147 Current Prior Next FY Invoices                             a.bryce

                          For checks For Check Acct 01(General Fund) >=      83278 08/01/2020 To 08/28/2020

                                                                                 Purchase    Discount     Amount   Check     Check

 Vendor                                   Invoice      Invoice Description        Amount      Amount       Paid    Number     Date

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 STONES    STONE'S AUTO REPAIR LLC        18978        DRAG LIN                     464.70        0.00      464.70    83514 08/28/20

 SUSSLIN   SUSSLIN, BEVERLY D             Sept 2020    120 North Main              1400.00        0.00     1400.00    83515 08/28/20

 THEVTCTR  THE VERMONT CENTER FOR RESPOND 1122         Contract                    1000.00        0.00     1000.00    83516 08/28/20

 090450    TOTAL HOME CENTER              3261620      Dehumidifiers                519.90        0.00      519.90    83517 08/28/20

 TREADLIGH TREAD LIGHTLY LANDSCAPING LLC  275          7/6/2020 Mowed and trimm     330.00        0.00      330.00    83518 08/28/20

 TREADLIGH TREAD LIGHTLY LANDSCAPING LLC  276          7/7/2020 Mowed               405.00        0.00      405.00    83518 08/28/20

                                                                                                       -----------

                                                                                          Check Total       735.00

 UNIFIRST  UNIFIRST CORPORATION           362019993    matts                         37.76        0.00       37.76    83519 08/28/20

 YEUNG     YEUNG GROUP, LLC               Sept 2020    Commercial premises with     800.00        0.00      800.00    83520 08/28/20

                                                                               ----------- ----------- -----------

                                Report Total                                    726,212.97        0.00  726,212.97

                                                                               =========== =========== ===========

          To the Treasurer of the City of St Albans, We Hereby certify

          that there is due to the several persons whose names are

          listed hereon the sum against each name and that there

          are good and sufficient vouchers supporting the payments

          aggregating $ ***726,212.97

          Let this be your order for the payments of these amounts.

          CITY COUNCIL:

          _____________________________     ______________________________     ______________________________

          Mayor Timothy Smith               Timothy Hawkins                    James Pelkey

          _____________________________     ______________________________     ______________________________

          Marie Bessette                    Michael McCarthy                   Chad Spooner

          _____________________________     ______________________________     ______________________________

          Kate Laddison                     Thomas Leitz                       Dominic Cloud


	Pending Extra-Territorial Allocation Application for R.L. Vallee - 555 Fairfax Road 081220.pdf
	Image 1
	Image 2
	2 - City Wastewater Allocation Application Signed.pdf
	Image 1
	Image 2

	3 - Extra-territorial Allocation Application Signed.pdf
	Image 1


	MPG Resolution for 2020-09-14.pdf
	CPR-MPG-Resolution PC Sig.pdf
	FY21 Municipal Resolution for Municipal Planning Grant





